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PART |
Item 1. Business.
Overview

We are a leader in the development, manufacturesaledof innovative medical devices used in infagleerapy, oncology and critical
care applications. Our products improve patient@mes by helping to prevent bloodstream infectibinsugh the use of hemodynamic
monitoring for critically ill patients and proteng healthcare workers from exposure to infectidesabes or hazardous drugs. Our complete
product line includes needlefree infusion connestoustom infusion systems, catheters and hemodgmaonitoring systems and closed
system transfer devices and automated compounatensifidling hazardous drugs. Our headquarteris &8an Clemente, California.

Our products are used in hospitals and alternatiaalesites in more than 55 countries throughoetvtiorld. We categorize our
products into three main market segments: InfuSioerapy, Critical Care and Oncology. Products detsif our main market segments are
grouped under Other. Our primary products include:

Infusion Therapy

. Needlefree connector products
° MicroClave and MicroClave Clear
° Anti-Microbial MicroClave
° Neutron
° NanoClave
° Clave
° Y-Clave
° Anti-Microbial Clave
. Custom infusion sets
Critical Care
. Hemodynamic monitoring systems
° Transpac disposable pressure transducers
° Safeset closed needlefree blood conservationmagste
° CardioFlo hemodynamic monitoring sensor system
° Custom monitoring systems
. Catheters
° Advanced sensor catheters
° Pulmonary artery thermodilution catheters
° Central venous oximetry catheters
° Multi-lumen central venous catheters
. Custom angiography and interventional radiology k
Oncology
. ChemoLock closed system transfer device and coes
. ChemoClave closed system transfer device and epems including:
° Genie closed vial access device
° Spiros closed male luer
. Custom preparation and administration sets andssories
. Diana hazardous drug compounding system
Other
. Tego needlefree hemodialysis connector
. Lopez enteral valve

We currently sell substantially all of our produtdsmedical product manufacturers, independentiligbrs and directly to the end
user. Revenues for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $34ii@n , $316.9 million and $302.2 million , resgtively. Hospira, our largest customer,
accounted for 39% , 42% and 42% of our worldwideneies in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.nmecfrom operations was $51.9
million , $61.3 million and $65.2 million in 2012012 and 2011 , respectively. Total assets we®8 $4million , $428.5 million and $361.1
million in 2013 , 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Company Background

ICU Medical, Inc. was founded in 1984 and our alipublic offering was in 1992. In 1993, we laundtiee Clave, an innovative one-
piece needlefree I.V. connection device. In 1998 developed a computerized manufacturing procdiesicaetMaker that enables us to des
a custom infusion set to a customer's exact spatifins and commence production in less than opérda receiving the order. Since the late
1990's, we have expanded our product offeringsisgducing internally developed products and systand acquiring product lines. We have
previously launched internally developed produotsuse in critical care, dialysis and oncology #psr. These products include CardioFlo
hemodynamic monitoring sensor system, the Tegaderin dialysis and a line of oncology productduding ChemoLock needlefree closed
system transfer device, the Spiros male luer caoneevice, the Genie vial access device, custdusion sets and ancillary products
specifically designed for chemotherapy. In 2005,acquired Hospira, Inc's ("Hospira") Salt Lake Gitgnufacturing facility and entered into
an agreement with Hospira to produce their critazak products exclusively for Hospira. In Augudd2, we purchased all commercial rights
and physical assets from Hospira's critical cacelpet line which provided us control over all agpasf our critical care product line.

In 2011, we extended our 1995 supply and distrilsugigreement and 2001 co-promotion and distribiagneement with Hospira to
2018. We are also expanding our business throughased sales to other medical product manufasturefependent distributors and through
direct sales to the end users of our products.sdle&pansions also include agreements with U.$&hlsage purchasing networks including the
2014 agreement with Premier, the extension ofeéha bf our agreement with MedAssets and our 201demgent with Novation covering all
our critical care products.

First person pronouns used in this Report, su¢wag “us,” and “our,” refer to ICU Medical, Inc.ral its subsidiaries unless context
requires otherwise.

Our website address is http://www.icumed.com. \akeravailable our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @argr Reports on Form 10-
Q and Current Reports on Fornk8and amendments to those reports free of chargripwebsite as soon as reasonably practicaldefdiihg
them with the Securities and Exchange CommissiB&EC"). We also have our code of ethics postedunwebsite (http://www.icumed.corr
The information on our website is not incorporaited this Annual Report.

The public may read and copy any materials weafita the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Roofi0atF Street, NE,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infatioraon the operation of the Public Reference Rbagmnoalling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site thataostreports, proxy and information statements,ahdr information regarding issuers that
file electronically with the SEC on its websitetfht/www.sec.gov).

Products
Infusion Therapy

I.V. therapy lines, used in hospitals and ambulattinics, consist of a tube running from a botiteplastic bag containing an 1.V.
solution to a catheter inserted in a patient’s véihe tube typically has several injection port¥ esites (conventionally, entry tubes covere:
rubber caps) to which a secondary 1.V. line caedrmected to permit constant intravenous admiristraf medications, fluids and nutrients,
and to allow instantaneous intravenous administnadi emergency medication.

Clave Needlefree I.V. Technology

Prior to the introduction of needle-safe connectarsonventional 1.V. line terminated with a maler connector to which a hollow-
bore needle would be attached to penetrate a datemn-latex rubber covered injection port to mak@imary or secondary 1.V. connection.
With the Clave technology, instead of attachingbow-bore needle to the male luer, a needleframeotor with Clave technology is used in
place of the injection port, and the male luerhwiit a needle, is simply threaded into the Clawh wihalf turn. The Clave consists of a
cylindrical housing, which contains a pre-slit@ilne compression seal and an internal blunt canmsahe luer tip enters the Clave housing, i
depresses the silicone seal back into the housidglides over the blunt cannula, which penetriiesigh the pre-slit silicone. Fluid channels
in the blunt cannula create a continuous fluid paghfrom the 1.V. line, through the Clave into fvémary I.V. line and into the catheter. The
luer tip creates a tight seal against the top efsilicone thereby preventing contaminants fronereng the fluid pathway or fluid from escapi
the connection. When the 1.V. line is disconnedtech the Clave, the silicone compression seal Bdpdo again fill the housing and reseal the
opening. When the Clave is not in use, the sikcoompression seal fills the
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opening in the housing and covers the internaltbitannula, thus completely sealing the fluid pattl presenting a flush surface that can be
cleansed with an alcohol swab. The Clave containsatural rubber latex.

Emergency medications and 1.V. fluids can be adsténéd through the Clave by using a standard sgnivithout a hypodermic neec
attached or various pre-filled syringe devicese Ttave can be used with any conventional periploereentral vascular access systems, both
for venous and arterial applications. The resdénf the silicone compression seal permits regeatanections and disconnections without
replacing the Clave.

The Y-Clave is designed to be integrated directty primary and secondary 1.V. sets, thus elimittathe need for special adapters,
pre-slit injection ports, or metal needles when imalpiggyback I.V. connections. The Y-Clave doesmeplace Clave products used in non-
piggyback connections. Both the original Clave #relY-Clave are marketed to I.V. set manufactuyish as Hospira, to build directly into
their I.V. sets or used by us in our custom infossets.

The MicroClave® is smaller than the standard Claweis functionally similar. The MicroClave haseature where upon
disconnection of an I.V. administration set or sg#, there is a neutral displacement of fluid. Bfigws clinicians to utilize known protocols
without the risk of device failure and a salinesfiregimen which reduces cost and exposure tortlgeleparin, an anti-clotting agent. The
MicroClave is intended for use on all peripherad aentral catheters, which allows it to be usedughout the hospital and reduces line items
that the hospital may need to carry and the edutaltburden of having multiple devices. The Micra@ is being marketed as an extension o
the Clave product line for use where the infectiontrol, neutral displacement and saline flushuiesst are advantageous.

The NanoClave® is smaller than the MicroClave andesigned for use on neonatal and pediatric gati€he device has a clear
housing and incorporates Clave technology into allemconnector, allowing clinicians to flush thenoiector clear of blood with minimal flush
volumes.

These Clave products are our largest selling prolthe, and accounted for $109.7 million , or 3586 our revenue in 2013 , $116.2
million , or 37% , of our revenue in 2012 and $20illion , or 36% , of our revenue in 2011 . Adalital information regarding Clave product
sales over the last three years is discussed trIP&em 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Neutron

The Neutrorf™™ catheter patency device also features Clave teagppbut includes a bi-directional silicone valtathelps prevent
blood reflux into a catheter to minimize the ineide of occlusion, or blocking of the catheter dua blood clot. The Neutron was specifically
designed to be used on patients receiving longhkvetling central 1.V. lines.

Custom Infusion Sets

We have developed innovative software systems artufacturing processes known as SetMaker and ifaittat permit us to desic
a custom infusion set to a hospital’s or cliniceaxact specifications, commence production in ktewr Europe within less than a day after
we receive the customer order and ship smallersmofethe custom infusion sets to the customeriwithree days of receipt. While we are
capable of meeting customer demand on this actetktiaree-day schedule, in normal circumstanceshigwithin twentyene to thirty days «
receipt of the customers’ order. This is a fractd the time required by other custom set manufacs. The use of sophisticated design,
validation, ordering and order tracking systems stneamlined assembly and distribution procesdewalus to sell custom infusion sets at
prices substantially lower than those charged hgrgproducers of custom infusion sets.

Under a 2001 agreement with Hospira, we manufaetlirew custom infusion sets for sale by Hospara] the two companies jointly
promote the products under the name SetSource curhent term of the agreement extends through 2@&E8es of custom infusion sets
continue to increase as a result of the agreenmehiva expect further increases in sales of custdusion sets, although there is no assurance
that such increases will be achieved.

We have committed significant resources to theeia initiative to expand our custom infusion Isesinesses and expect to incur
additional expenses for continuing software develept and enhancements in the manufacturing process.

Custom infusion set sales accounted for $90.8anillior 29% , of our revenue in 2013, $85.6 milli@r 27% , of our revenue in
2012 and $76.6 million , or 25% , of our revenu@@il . Additional information regarding customuision sets sales over the last three years
is discussed in Part Il, Item 7 of this Annual Remm Form 10-K.
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Critical Care Products

Critical care products are used to monitor vitghsias well as specific physiological functionkey organ systems. We manufacture
hemodynamic monitoring systems, vascular and cauctitheters and monitoring systems and customrdad/entional radiology kits that are
used to monitor cardiac function and blood oxygarels in critically ill patients. They include albmponents of the invasive monitoring
system. A substantial portion of the invasive nanimg and angiography products are custom critea¢ products designed to meet the
particular needs of the customer. Most of our@altcare products can be sold in custom systentsioamg specific components to meet the
specific needs of the customer, and in some cassegym made or acquired components.

The primary critical care products we manufactueethe following:

Transpac Disposable Pressure Transducdpssposable pressure-sensing devices that provicerate and continuous blood pressure
readings and show the immediate effect of fluid aggment and drug administration. These produetsiggd most commonly on patients v
suspected pulmonary disease or cardiovascular wiytshn.

Safeset Closed Needlefree Blood Conservation Systimod sampling systems that provide the cliniciath a convenient,
needlefree method to obtain a patient’s blood saraptl to administer I.V. fluids or drugs in conjtioc with blood pressure monitoring
devices. They are designed to protect the clinifiam exposure to bloodborne pathogens, reducdsk®f I.V. line contamination and redt
blood waste for the patient.

CardioFlo Hemodynamic Monitoring Sensor Syst@ardioFlo is a minimally invasive monitoring sengar use on critical care
patients to deliver accurate and reliable hemodynmamonitoring data. CardioFlo can be used in cociiam with the Safeset system.

Advanced Sensory Cathete@atheters used to measure cardiac output and bboaggen levels. Depending on specific design, these
catheters contain up to five lumens and use filpdice to continuously measure mixed venous oxy@éumration, blood pressure and cardiac
output. They may also permit administration ofdiiand drugs, monitoring of patient temperature pressures and blood sampling.

Pulmonary Artery Thermodilution CathetefBatheters used for cardiac output determinatidng] &nd drug administration,
temperature and pressures and blood sampling. Hdepeon specific design, these catheters confaito dive lumens.

Central Venous Oximetry Cathetef3atheters used to measure central venous blooceaxXggels using fiber-optics. They may also
permit administration of fluids and drugs, monikgripatient temperature and pressures and bloodlisagmp

Multi-lumen Central Venous CathetefSatheters used for monitoring central venous pressilood sampling, and simultaneous
administration of multiple 1.V. solutions or drugsindividual flow rates.

Angiography Kits: A broad range of devices for use in the cardidleatarization laboratory that enable physicianstmitor the
function of the heart and examine the coronaryriade They are various types of “Left Heart” amight Heart” procedural kits which include
manifolds, syringes, stopcocks, specialized injectubing and dye management systems, many of vdoictain pressure-sensing devices, ant
waste management systems.

Critical care sales accounted for accounted forBfdillion , or 17% , of our revenue in 2013 , $hillion , or 17% , of our revenue
in 2012 and $61.4 million , or 20% , of our revemu@011 . Additional information regarding critlazare sales over the last three years is
discussed in Part Il, Item 7 of this Annual ReportForm 10-K.

Oncology

Oncology products are used to prepare and delazaridous medications such as those used in cherapyhehich, if released, can
have harmful effects to the healthcare worker andrenment. In 2007, we introduced a series oE€lancillary devices that were specific to
use in oncology and the Spiros closed male luenector. In 2008, we introduced the Genie closatladcess device. In 2013, we introduced
the ChemoLock closed system transfer device.

The preparation of hazardous drugs typically taktase in a pharmacy location where drugs are rechéneen vials and prepared for
delivery to a patient. Those prepared drugs ane titaasferred to a nursing unit where the chemagheis administered via infusion pump sets
to a patient. The Genie and other Clave ancillaogipcts are used in the pharmacy on
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drug vials during the preparation of hazardous cattins. The Spiros is used both in the pharmacgydnges to remove the drugs from vials
and in the patient delivery areas on the disposahlsion sets. ChemoLock is used in the pharmacdypatient administration for the safe
handling of hazardous drugs.

The primary oncology products we manufacture aeefaiowing:

» ChemoLock"Needlefree Closed System Transfer DevzleemoLock is the first and only needlefree closestesn transfer device
receive FDA 510(k) clearance for both pharmacy (QNMBd patient administration (FPA) applications.e@ioLock prevents tl
escape of hazardous drug or vapor concentratidaskdthe transfer of environmental contaminante the system, and elimina
needlestick injuries while minimizing hazardousgiaxposure.

» ChemoClave™ Needlefree Closed System Transfer DevitkemoClave is a needlefree closed system transfdcel for the sa
handling of hazardous drugs. The components thkempg the system include:

 Genie® Vial Access Devic&lhe Genie is a closed, needlefree vial access elahiat automatically equalizes drug
pressure for the safe preparation of hazardoussdrug

 Spiros® Closed Male LueiThe Spiros creates a needlefree closed systenhdosdfe mixing, transfer, administration
disposal of hazardous drugs. Upon disconnecting faoneedlefree connector, the Spiros automaticallfyseals and clos
the system, preventing spills from syringes or k®fts.

* Vial and Bag Access SpikeBevices that are used to access a variety of dialp wr solution containers. Differe
configurations allow for compatibility with a dive style of vials and bags, including those which managed usil
automated robotic systems.

« Diana™Hazardous Drug Compounding SysteDiana is an automated sterile compounding systerthéoaccurate, safe, and effici
preparation of hazardous drugs. It is a uzmTtrolled automated system that provides repeatabturacy of drug mixes, minimi:
clinician exposure to hazardous drugs and redueesigk of repetitive motion stresses for the clem while helping to maintain t
sterility of the drugs being mixed.

Oncology sales accounted for $37.5 million , or 1,28bour revenue in 2013, $30.3 million , or 10% our revenue in 2012 and
$24.4 million , or 8% , of our revenue in 2011 .dkébnal information regarding oncology sales other last three years is discussed in Part Il
Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Other Products and Revenues

Tego

The Tego® is a needlefree hemodialysis connectidrdieates a mechanically and microbiologicallysebbsystem when attached to
the hub of a catheter, eliminating open cathetéstand lowering the chance of contamination anectidn. Tego sales accounted for $9.2
million , or 3% , of our revenue in 2013, $9.5 it , or 3% , of our revenue in 2012 and $8.0iwnill, or 3% , of our revenue in 2011 .
Additional information regarding Tego sales over kist three years is discussed in Part Il, Iteshthis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Other Revenue

We have a significant number of patents on therteldyy in our products and methods used to manufachem. We have
continuing royalty and revenue share income fromtechnology and from time to time may receiven®se fees or royalties from other entities
for the use of our technology.

New Products

We are developing several new products that waéhte introduce in 2014 and later. We believe irative products continue to be
important to maintaining and increasing our sales.

Marketing and Sales

The influence of managed care and the growing ttewdrd consolidation among healthcare providec®igtinuing to be the driving
force behind our sales and marketing strategieanyMhealthcare providers are consolidating to ereat
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economies of scale and to increase negotiating paitie suppliers. In an effort to further contaasts, many of these consolidated provider
groups including Integrated Delivery Networks ("IB\ as well as Regional Purchasing Coalitions atereng into long-term contracts with
medical suppliers to secure favorable fixed pricifigthis increasingly challenging market place, believe it will continue to be important to
secure comprehensive, multi-product contracts alitimajor buying organizations in order to be beftesitioned when targeting specific
healthcare providers. The Patient Protection aridrd&ble Care Act is driving providers to searchrfeedical products that deliver the best
patient outcomes. Therefore, we position our prodewelopment, marketing and sales efforts to addites critical need of our provider
customers to help them achieve the very best pgatée.

As of December 31, 2013, we employed 188 peoplgdwide in sales and marketing. We built our sagam to market our
products rather than rely exclusively on distrivatand OEMs. Our sales function includes prodpetmlists worldwide who support our
medical product manufacturing customers, our inddpat domestic distributors and end users of conlymts. Our product specialists call on
prospective customers, demonstrate products amngedslipport programs necessary to train the matwifag and distribution salespeople, as
well as our end-use customers’ clinical staffshia use of our products.

Our administrative operations are in San Clemedédifornia, Vrable, Slovakia, Roncanova, Italy dndlenscheid, Germany. Our
shipments from the United States are invoiced . dollars and our shipments in Europe are invoiodelros.

Domestic Sales

Domestic sales include U.S. sales to Hospira, otfestical product manufacturers, domestic distritsuémnd sales directly to the end
customer. Total domestic sales were $223.1 milli$237.0 million and $224.5 million in 2013 , 204:2d 2011 , respectively.

Medical Product Manufacturet

We have a strategic supply and distribution retegiop with Hospira, a major 1.V. product suppliehich has a significant share of-
U.S. I.V. set market under contract. Our agreeméitit Hospira runs through 2018 and provides H@spiith conditional rights to distribute
certain of our Clave and other products to certategories of customers both in the United Statdsf@reign countries. Depending on the
product and category of customer, these rights lbeagxclusive or nonexclusive.

Hospira purchases Clave products packaged sepefatelistribution to healthcare providers and ulkbfor assembly into Hospira’s
full range of I.V. products. The MicroClave, Mi€tave Clear, ChemoClave CSTD and pre-pierced cdanpooducts are purchased and
packaged separately.

Under another agreement with Hospira that extemasigh 2018, we have the exclusive right to manufacall new custom gravity
I.V. sets for sale by Hospira, other than thoseéaussets that Hospira was manufacturing beforentered into the agreement in 2001. We
jointly promote the products under the name Set&@owith Hospira. Hospira is the exclusive and-exclusive distributor and co-promoter of
SetSource products to certain categories of cusgrmeluding SetSource products containing bothganies’ proprietary products.

Domestic sales to Hospira accounted for approxiiy&@&26 of our revenue in 2013 . The loss of Haspis a customer would have a
significant adverse effect on our business andatjpegy results.

Independent Domestic Distributc

As of December 31, 2013, we had 50 independefritdisors in the United States which accountedafgproximately 28% of our
revenues in 2013 . Distributors purchase and stockproducts for resale to healthcare providers.

One distributor accounted for 7% of revenue in 20¥4l other independent distributors accountediéss than 5% of revenue in
2013 . Although the loss of one or more of ougéairdistributors could have an adverse effect arbasiness, we believe we could readily
locate other distributors in the same territorig®would continue to distribute our products togheme customers.
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International Sales
International sales were $90.6 million , $79.9 imilland $77.7 million in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 pessively.

International sales are primarily concentrateduinoe, Canada, Asia Pacific, Southeast Asia, Latirerica, Africa and the Middle
East. As of December 31, 2013, we had approxigna@o international distributors. Customers irr&e are served by our facilities in
Slovakia, Italy and Germany. We serve the reshefworld from our facilities in the U.S. and MexicAs of December 31, 2013, we had 28
business development personnel serving Europe asdriing Asia Pacific, Southeast Asia, Latin AroariAfrica, the Middle East and
Canada.

Manufacturing

Manufacturing of our products involves injectionlding of plastic and silicone parts, manual andmated assembly of the molded
plastic parts, needles and other components, gualiitrol inspection, packaging and sterilizatidlie mold all of our proprietary components,
and perform all assembly, quality control, inspattipackaging, labeling and shipping of our prosu@ur manufacturing operations function
as a separate group, producing products for th&eting and sales groups.

We own a fully integrated medical device manufdotyfacility in Salt Lake City, Utah with approxirtedy 450,000 square feet of
state-of-the art manufacturing space. This bugdirtludes approximately 82,500 square feet ofscld¥),000 clean room area, approximately
36,000 square feet of other manufacturing spagepapmately 104,000 square feet of warehouse spadepproximately 155,000 square feet
of office space. As of December 31, 2013, thidlifg was equipped with 67 injection molding maehs and ancillary equipment and
approximately 41 automated or semi-automated adgamdrhines. These sophisticated, highly automasseémbly systems are designed to
minimize human intervention and assemble the Cl#v€Jave, MicroClave, Clave vial access spike, CDG@, Spin Luer, 102 Valves and
RF150 and some of our critical care products. d$sembly systems are custom designed and manafadaurus. Our mold maintenance
shop supports the repair and maintenance needs ofi@ding. We are in the process of adding 33 &fitare feet of additional high-bay clean
room capacity for injection molding operations. Afdicipate that this expansion will be completedh®/ second half of 2014.

Most of our manual assembly is done at our faesiin Ensenada, Mexico and Vrable, Slovakia. Cuilifigin Mexico has
approximately 250,000 square feet of productiormelvausing space and an electron beam (“e-beamiljzte Principal products assembled
manually in Mexico are infusion therapy systemgiocal care systems, kits, Clave and oncology #agilproducts and accessories. Our fac
in Slovakia has approximately 77,000 square feg@rodluction, warehousing space and an e-beamizterilPrincipal products assembled
manually in Slovakia are infusion therapy systekits, Clave and oncology ancillary products andeasories.

Our state-of-the-art injection molding technologndaighly automated assembly systems are designedintain a high level of
product quality and achieve high volume productabiow unit manufacturing costs. To achieve thebeantages and to gain greater control
over raw material and finished product deliverydgnwe mold our entire requirements of proprietaojJded components. The raw materials
for our molding operation are principally resinglailicones, and these materials are available Beweral sources. Our exposure to
commodity price changes relates primarily to cartaanufacturing operations that use resin. We nmpoag exposure to changes in those
prices through our procurement and supply chainagement practices.

The majority of the non-critical care products warmafacture are sterilized in processes which useasn radiation. Most critical ca
products and other certain products are curretgiyliged in processes using gamma radiation oylette oxide gas (“EO”). We have our own
sterilization facilities at our plants in MexicodBlovakia that are used to sterilize most of ttoelpct assembled in the respective plants. All
other sterilization is done by independent contnect

We also assemble compounders in our leased faigilitydenscheid, Germany.
Government Regulation

Government regulation is a significant factor ie ttevelopment, marketing and manufacturing of eadpcts. The Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA”") regulates medical product mdacturers and their products under a numberadiites including the Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), and we and our products aubject to the regulations of the FDA. The F&E provides two basic review
procedures for medical devices. Certain produetg qualify for a submission authorized by Secti@6(k) of the FDC Act, under which the
manufacturer gives the FDA a pre-market notifiaatd the
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manufacturer’s intention to commence marketingpteeluct. The manufacturer must, among other thiegisblish that the product to be
marketed is substantially equivalent to anotheallggnarketed product. Marketing may commence wihenFDA issues a letter finding
substantial equivalence. Some Medical Devices quaify for the FDA as a Class Il, 510(k) Exemppé8ial Controls) medical device per 21
CFR 880.5440. These “Special Controls” are defim&d'Adherence to the normal FDA regulations saglhe QSR, Complaints, etc. and a
specific guidance document” but require no pre-raariotification to the FDA. If a medical deviceedonot qualify for the Section 510(k)
procedure or the special controls exemption, theufaturer must file a pre-market approval (“PMAfplication. This requires substantially
more extensive pre-filing testing than the Sec&&A(k) procedure and involves a significantly longBA review process. FDA approval of a
PMA application occurs only after the applicant katablished safety and efficacy to the satisfaaticthe FDA. Each of our current products
has qualified for the Section 510(k) procedur@ciéded, and we anticipate that any new productsuvhare likely to market will qualify for tt
expedited Section 510(k) clearance procedure gtled. However, certain of our new products mayirequlengthier time for clearance than
we have experienced in the past, and there cao bssurance that a PMA application will not be mexfli Further, there is no assurance that
other new products we develop or any manufactuhatswe might acquire, or claims that we may makegcerning those products, will qualify
for expedited clearance rather than the more tiomseming PMA procedure or that, in any case, thlyr@ceive clearance from the FDA.
FDA regulatory processes are time consuming andresipe. Uncertainties as to time required to obf)A clearances or approvals could
adversely affect the timing and expense of new prbohtroductions. All of the regulated produdiattwe currently manufacture are classified
as Class Il medical devices by the FDA. Classdtiimal devices are subject to performance standatal$ng to one or more aspects of the
design, manufacturing, testing and performancelmracharacteristics of the product in additiogémeral controls involving compliance with
labeling and record keeping requirements.

We must comply with FDA, International Organization Standardization (“ISO”) and European Coundildotive 93/42/EEC
(“Medical Device Directive”) regulations governimgedical device manufacturing practices. The FDates foreign agencies and ISO require
manufacturers to register and subject manufacttogpsriodic FDA, state, foreign agencies and I8€§péctions of their manufacturing
facilities. We are a FDA and I1SO registered mddiexice manufacturer, and must demonstrate thatnweour contract manufacturers corr
with the FDA's current Quality System Regulatiol@$R”). Under these regulations, the manufactugracess must be regulated and
controlled by the use of written procedures andathiity to produce devices that meet the manufactsi specifications must be validated by
extensive and detailed testing of every criticplems of the process. They also require investigatfoany deficiencies in the manufacturing
process or in the products produced and detailsatdekeeping. Further, the FDA and ISO'’s intergtien and enforcement of these
requirements has been increasingly strict in regeats and seems likely to be even more stringetfis future. Failure to adhere to QSR and
ISO standards would cause the products produckd tmnsidered in violation of the applicable lawd anbject to enforcement action. The
FDA and ISO monitor compliance with these requiretady requiring manufacturers to register with Bi¥A and ISO, and by subjecting th
to periodic FDA and ISO inspections of manufactgfiacilities. If an FDA or ISO inspector obsengemditions that might be violative, the
manufacturer must correct those conditions or expleem satisfactorily, or face potential regulgtaction that might include physical remo
of the product from the marketplace.

We believe that our products and procedures acerimpliance with all applicable FDA and ISO reguwas. There is no assurance,
however, that other products we are developingadyrcts that we may develop in the future will leaced by the FDA and classified as Clas:
Il products, or that additional regulations redtnig the sale of our present or proposed produdtsiat be promulgated by the FDA, ISO or
agencies in other jurisdictions. In addition, ogasin FDA, 1SO or other federal or state healtivirenmental or safety regulations or their
applications could adversely affect our business.

Medicare has mandated that dialysis catheter ugethe 10-12% range or less in all dialysis urits2015, it will change to less than
10%. This mandate has resulted in catheter usendegin dialysis units nationwide and may causkerease in sales of Tego, our needlefres
hemodialysis connector that creates a mechaniaatlymicrobiologically closed system when attacleetthé hub of a catheter.

To market our products in the European CommunBC("), we must conform to additional requirementshef EC and demonstrate
conformance to established quality standards apticaple directives. As a manufacturer that designanufactures and markets its own
devices, we must comply with the quality managenséartdards of EN ISO 13485. Those quality standarelsimilar to the QSR regulations.

Manufacturers of medical devices must also confrarf&C Directives such as Council Directive 93/42IE&nd their applicable
annexes. Those regulations assure that medicaledeare both safe and effective and meet all eqiplé established standards prior to being
marketed in the EC. Once a manufacturer and itdg are in conformance with the Medical Deviceebiive, the “CE” Mark may be affixed
to its devices. The CE Mark gives devices unolsstdientry to all the member countries of the EC.
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We have demonstrated conformity to the regulatiolBM ISO 13485 and the Medical Device Directive avelaffix the CE Mark to
our device labeling for product sold in member ddes of the EC.

We believe our products and systems are in congsiavith all EC requirements. There can be no assar, however, that other
products we are developing or products that we deaelop in the future will conform or that additsdmegulations restricting the sale of our
present or proposed products will not be promuldjatethe EC.

Competition

The market for infusion therapy, oncology and caticare products is intensely competitive. Wedwalithat our ability to compete
depends upon our continued innovation and the tyuatbnvenience, reliability, patent protection ammiting of our products, in addition to
access to distribution channels. We encounterfgignii competition in this market both from largaablished medical device manufacturers
and from smaller companies. Our ability to compdfectively depends on our ability to differentia@ier products based on innovation, safety,
product quality, cost effectiveness, ease of uskcanvenience, as well as our ability to perceivé @spond to changing customer needs. In
the long term, we expect that our ability to conepetll continue to be enhanced by our ability tduee unit manufacturing costs through
improved production processes and higher volumdymtion.

In the infusion therapy market, our present progleompete with and our currently contemplated nesdyicts will likely compete
with needlefree 1.V. sets and systems marketeddxté® Healthcare Corporation (“Baxter”), B. Braumdical, Inc. (“B. Braun”), CareFusion,
Inc. (“CareFusion”), Becton Dickinson and Compatiecton Dickinson") and others. Although we beli¢lat our needlefree devices and
custom set manufacturing capabilities have distdetantages over competing systems, there is nosas® that they will be able to compete
successfully with these products.

In the oncology market, we compete with other maawirers of closed system transfer devices fosdfe handling of oncology
drugs, most notably Becton Dickinson, CareFusiaydshield LLC and B. Braun. We believe that ourentrproduct offering provides
benefits over these competing systems in sevezabaelated to safety, ease of use, and cost; lon@vgoing innovation in this market spa
will be required, and there is no assurance thediglinnovations will be able to sustain continuexivth.

The market for our critical care devices is higbtynpetitive and our success in this area is basgticing, customer service and
product features. The overall market for criticatecproducts has been declining in recent yeatsipulmonary artery catheter segment as
customers increasingly seek less invasive prodaalsliver patient hemodynamic status data.

Manufacturers of products with which we currenttyrpete, or might compete with in the future, inédarge companies with an
established presence in the healthcare producteeramd substantially greater financial, marketingd distribution, managerial and other
resources. In particular, Baxter, CareFusion, Hasfdecton Dickinson and B. Braun are leading itigtors of I.V. therapy systems, Edwards
Life Sciences has a significant share of the @littare hemodynamic monitoring market, while Nastilvedical, Inc., and Merit Medical
Systems, Inc., are competitors in the angiograghmérket. Several of these competitors have bpraduct lines and have been successful in
obtaining full-line contracts with a significantmber of hospitals to supply substantially all adittproduct requirements in these areas. In
order to achieve greater market penetration or tfaaiur existing market position, we have estalelisstrategic relationships with customers
such as Hospira.

We believe the success of our market-leading néedleonnector line has and will continue to mdtwvathers to develop one-piece
needlefree connectors, which may incorporate métlyeosame functional and physical characterigt&surs. We are aware of a number of
such products. We believe some of those produats developed by companies who currently have thildution or financial capabilities
equivalent to or greater than those that we hawébg other companies that we believe do not hamias capabilities, although some of those
products may be distributed in the future by largampanies that do have such capabilities. We\metigese products have had a moderate
impact on our needlefree connector business tq Hatehere is no assurance that our current aréytroducts will be able to successfully
compete with these or future products developedtbgrs.

We believe that our ability to compete in the cosforoducts market depends upon the same factastiaff our existing products, t

will be particularly affected by cost to the custmand delivery times. While we believe we haveaadiages in these two areas, there is no
assurance that other companies will not be abdenopete successfully with our custom products.
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Patents

We have United States and certain foreign patefasimg to the technologies found in the Clave®i¢fdClave® Connector,
Neutror® Connector, CLC2000® Connector, Tego® Connecte€lave® Connector with Integral Check Valve, Sp@dSlosed Male
Connector, Genie® Closed Vial Access Device, Cliokk® Technology, and Custom Set Design and Mariufag Methods. We have
applications pending for additional United Stated #oreign patents on MicroClave® Connector, Nen®dConnector, CLC2000® Connector,
Tego® Connector, Y-Clave® Connector with Integrale€k Valve, Spiros® Closed Male Connector, Genid®é€d Vial Access Device, and
Diana Hazardous Drug Compounding System.

Our success may depend in part on our ability tainlpatent protection for our products and to afgewithout infringing the
proprietary rights of third parties. While we hadgained certain patents and applied for additibimted States and foreign patents covering
certain of our products, there is no assuranceatfyidditional patents will be issued, that thepscof any patent protection will prevent
competitors from introducing similar devices ortthay of our patents will be held valid if subseglyechallenged. We also believe that
patents on the Click Lock products may have beed that patent protection on the Clave may be, mapbin preventing others from
introducing competing products that are as effectis our products. The loss of patent protectio@lave/MicroClave, Neutron, CLC2000,
Spiros, Genie, Custom Set Design and Manufacti8igiems or Click Lock products could adverselydafér ability to exclude other
manufacturers from producing effective competifiveducts and could have an adverse impact on oandial results.

United States patents related to our principal pctglexpire as follows:

Product Expiration dates
Clave® / MicroClave® Connector 2014-11-07
CLC2000® Connector 12/2016

Click Lock® Technology 11/2014-07/2015
Custom Set Design and Manufacturing 01/2021

Spiros® Closed Male Connector 12/2024-05/2028
Genie® Closed Vial Access Device 05/2026

Y-Clave® Connector with Integral Check Valve 02/2025

Tego® Connector 07/2020-11/2025
Neutron® Connector 09/2025

The fact that a patent is issued to us does ruirdie the possibility that patents owned by otlneay contain claims that are
infringed by our products.

There has been substantial litigation regardingmiadand other intellectual property rights in thedical device industry. Litigation,
which would result in substantial cost to us andiirersion of our resources, may be necessaryfandaus against claimed infringement of the
rights of others and to determine the scope aridityabf the proprietary rights of others. Adverdeterminations in such litigation could
subject us to significant liabilities to third piag or could require us to seek licenses from thadies and could prevent us from manufactu
selling or using our products, any of which coudtvé a material adverse effect on our businesaddiition, we have initiated litigation, and
may continue to initiate litigation in the futute,enforce our intellectual property rights agaihsise we believe to be infringing on our
patents. See Item 3. “Legal Proceedings” belowchSitigation could result in substantial cost aliekrsion of resources.

Seasonality/Quarterly Results

The healthcare business in the United States jectio quarterly fluctuations due to frequencylioess during the seasons, elective
procedures, and over the last few years, the ecgnionicurope, the healthcare business generallyssttown in the summer months due to
vacations resulting in fewer elective surgeriessoAn Europe, hospitals’ budgets tend to finiskhatend of the year which may cause fewer
purchases in the last three months of the yeaosggitals await their new budgets in January. Miitaah, we can experience fluctuations in net
sales as a result of variations in the orderintepas of our largest customers, which may be drimene by production scheduling and their
inventory levels, and less by seasonality. Oueesps often do not fluctuate in the same manneetasales, which may cause fluctuations in
operating income that are disproportionate to flatibns in our revenue.
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Research and Development

Our research and development costs include perboosts and expenses related to the developmerg@wiproducts. Research and
development costs were $12.4 million in 2013 , 614illion in 2012 and $8.6 million in 2011 .

Employees

At December 31, 2013 , we had 2,269 full-time empls, consisting of 288 engaged in sales, markatidgadministration and 1,981
in manufacturing, molding, product development gudlity control, including 1,298 in Mexico and 2id9Slovakia.

Long-lived Assets

The table below presents our long-lived assetsoopiry (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Mexico $ 49t $ 475 3 46.4
Slovakia 18.4 16.2 15.2
Italy 5.4 5.C 5.C
Germany 0.t 0.2 0.2
Total foreign $ 73 % 68¢ §$ 66.¢
United States 139.2 129.¢ 116.]
Worldwide total $ 213.C $ 198.¢ $ 182.¢

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

In evaluating an investment in our common stockegtors should consider carefully, among othemghithe following risk factors, i
well as the other information contained in this AahReport and our other reports and registratiatesents filed with the SEC.

Unexpected changes in our arrangements with Hogpiag cause a decline in our sales and could résutsignificant reduction in our sales
and profits.

We depend on Hospira for a high percentage of al@ssWorldwide sales to Hospira were 39% , 42%42% of revenue for the
years ended December 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Under the terms of our agreements with Hospiraamedependent on the marketing and sales effottogpira for a large percentage
of our sales, and Hospira determines the pricesath the products that we sell to Hospira willdmdd to its customers. Hospira has
conditional exclusive rights to sell Clave and othrer products as well as custom infusion systemieiuthe SetSource program in many of its
major accounts. If Hospira is unable to maint&rposition in the marketplace, our sales and djp@sicould be adversely affected.

In 2013, U. S. Hospira substantially reduced itscpases of our Clave products, resulting in a rédnén 2013 sales compared to
2012. If Hospira continues to reduce orders, wddcexperience lower sales in future years comptra13.

Our ability to maintain and increase our marketgigation depends in significant part on the sucoéssir arrangement with Hospira
and Hospira’s arrangements with major buying orgtins and its ability to renew such arrangemest$o which there is no assurance. Our
business could be materially adversely affectétbgpira terminates its arrangement with us, netgstilbwer prices, sells competing products
or increases it sales of competing products, whettamufactured by Hospira or others, or otherwitagrsathe nature of its relationship with us.
Although we believe that Hospira views us as a@of innovative and profitable products, thereasassurance that our relationship with
Hospira will continue in its current form.

In contrast to our dependence on Hospira, our fp@competitors in the market for protective infusconnection systems are much
larger companies that dominate the market for infuproducts and have broad product lines and lmtgenal distribution networks. In many
cases, these competitors are able to establishsxelrelationships with large
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hospitals, hospital chains, major buying organaraiand home healthcare providers to supply sulietgrall of their requirements for infusi
products. In addition, we believe that there isead among individual hospitals and alternatefséi@thcare providers to consolidate into or
large major buying organizations with a view tonstardizing and obtaining price advantages on deplesmedical products. These factors
limit our ability to gain market share through éndependent dealer network, resulting in continceacentration of sales to and dependenc
Hospira.

We expect that Hospira will continue to be one af most important customers, particularly with esto our Clave products and
custom infusion systems. With respect to thesdymits, we remain dependent on our continued relsitip with Hospira as well as Hospira’s
position in the marketplace. While we do not a@ptte significant changes in our sales to Hospiithese products, the amount of such sales
varies from quarter to quarter. In addition, wa peaovide no assurances that our relationship #Wahpira will not change, resulting in adverse
effects on sales and operations.

We are increasingly dependent on manufacturing éxikb and Slovakia and could be adversely affelsyeainy economic, social or political
disruptions.

We continue to expand our production in Mexico &talvakia. Any political or economic disruption inedico or Slovakia or a chan
in the local economies could have an adverse effeciur operations. In 2013, production costsevagproximately $99.7 million in Mexico
and approximately $16.9 million in Slovakia. Mo$tlee material we use in manufacturing is impoiited Mexico and Slovakia, and
substantially all of the products we manufactur&gxico and Slovakia are exported. We depend orability to move goods across borders
quickly. Any disruption in the free flow of goodsrass national borders could have an adverse effeour business.

As of December 31, 2013 , we employed 1,298 peopbperations and product development in our plaiinsenada, Mexico and
209 people in operations in our plant in Vrabl@v@kia. Business activity in the Ensenada areakpanded significantly, providing increased
employment opportunities. This could have an advefect on our ability to hire or retain necesgagysonnel and result in an increase in i
rates. We continue to take steps to compete far lédvough attractive employment conditions anddfigsy but there is no assurance that these
steps will continue to be successful or that wé mat face increasing labor costs in the future.

Additionally, political and social instability rekiing from violence in certain areas of Mexico mased concerns about the safety of
our personnel. These concerns may hinder outyabilisend domestic personnel abroad and to holeeain local personnel. Such concerns
may require us to increase security for persomagkting to our Mexico facility or to conduct masperations from the United States rather
than Mexico, which may negatively impact our opiera and result in higher costs and inefficiencies.

Our operating results may be adversely affectedrifgvorable economic conditions which affect owstomers’ability to buy our products ar
could affect our relationships with our suppliers.

Disruptions in financial markets worldwide and atlhridwide macro-economic challenges may causeostomers and suppliers to
experience cash flow concerns. If job losses hadésulting loss of health insurance and persemahgs cause individuals to forgo or
postpone treatment, the resulting decreased hbapiecould affect the demand for our products.aAssult, customers may modify, delay or
cancel plans to purchase our products and suppliaysincrease their prices, reduce their outpuhange terms of sales. Additionally, if
customers’ or suppliers’ operating and financiafgenance deteriorates, or if they are unable t&erscheduled payments or obtain credit,
customers may not be able to pay, or may delay paywof, accounts receivable owed to us and sugpliety impose different payment terms.
Any inability of current and/or potential customéospay us for our products or any demands by sexsplior different payment terms may
adversely affect our earnings and cash flow.

Healthcare reform legislation could adversely affear revenue and financial conditio

In recent years, there have been numerous inéisitdn the federal and state levels for comprehemsiorms affecting the payment
for, the availability of and reimbursement for lthahre services in the United States. In 2010Ptient Protection and Affordable Care Act
and the Health Care and Education Reconciliationwe signed into law introducing comprehensivaltheinsurance and healthcare reforms
in the United States. Among the provisions of slegjislation that may have an adverse impact as a2.3% excise tax imposed on medical
device manufacturers for the sale of certain médiewices to United States customers. The excisemdich became effective January 1, 2(
resulted in $1.8 million of additional expense 123 recorded in Selling, General and Administraéxpenses. The ultimate implementation o
any healthcare reform legislation, and its imparcts, is impossible to predict. Any significantaehis made to the
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healthcare system in the United States, or in gthiesdictions, may have an adverse effect on marfcial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to effectively manage our intemralwth or growth through acquisitions of companigssets or products, our financ
performance may be adversely affec

We intend to continue to expand our marketing asttidution capability, which may include extermadpansion through acquisitions
both in the United States and foreign markets. Vg adso consider expanding our product offeringsubh acquisitions of companies or
product lines. We can provide no assurance thatiwée able to identify, acquire, develop or ptafily manage additional companies or
operations or successfully integrate such compaieperations into our existing operations withsuibstantial costs, delays or other
problems.

We have built additional production facilities ddesthe United States, to reduce labor costs @amirelte transportation and other
costs of shipping finished products from the Uniftdtes and Mexico to customers outside North Acaein 2010, we completed construction
of a new assembly plant in Slovakia that servescamopean product distribution. The expansionwfroanufacturing, marketing, distribution
and product offerings both internally and throughasitions or by contract may place substantiatibas on our management resources and
financial controls. Decentralization of assemblyg amanufacturing could place further burdens on rgameent to manage those operations an
maintain efficiencies and quality control.

The increasing burdens on our management resoanckBnancial controls resulting from internal gtovand acquisitions could
adversely affect our operating results. In addjteequisitions may involve a number of specialgigkaddition to the difficulty of integrating
cultures and operations and the diversion of mamagés attention, including adverse short-termetffen our reported operating results,
dependence on retention, hiring and training of pessonnel, risks associated with unanticipatetdlpros or legal liabilities and amortization
of acquired intangible assets, some or all of wiishld materially and adversely affect our operatiand financial performance.

Our business could be materially and adverselycadf if we fail to defend and enforce our pateifitsur products are found to infringe pate
owned by others or if the cost of patent litigatimetomes excessive or as our key patents expire.

We have patents on certain products, software asthéss methods, and pending patent applicatioshen intellectual property
and inventions. There is no assurance, howevdrp#iants pending will issue or that the protecfiom patents which have issued or may
issue in the future will be broad enough to prexemhpetitors from introducing similar devices, teath patents, if challenged, will be upheld
by the courts or that we will be able to proveimjement and damages in litigation.

We are substantially dependent upon the patentsioproprietary products to prevent others from ufiacturing and selling produc
similar to ours. We generally have multiple paserdvering various features of a product, and abk patent expires, the protection affordec
that patent is no longer available to us, evendghqurotection of features that are covered by atinexpired patents may continue to be
available to us. The loss of patent protectiorenain features of our products may make it pés$dy others to manufacture and sell prod
with features similar to ours, which could adveyssfect our business.

If others choose to manufacture and sell productias to or substantially the same as our produttould have a material adverse
effect on our business through loss of unit volungrice erosion, or both, and could adverselycféeir ability to secure new business.

In the past, we have faced patent infringemenindaielated to the Clave, the CLC2000 and Tego. 8lie\® these claims had no
merit, and all have been settled or dismissed.m also face claims in the future. Any adversereination on these claims related to the
Clave or other products, if any, could have a nigtedverse effect on our business.

From time to time we become aware of newly issusdns on medical devices which we review to evelaay infringement risk.
We are aware of a number of patents for I.V. cotioesystems that have been issued to others. Wileilbelieve these patents will not affect
our ability to market our products, there is nouaasce that these or other issued or pending ateight not interfere with our right or ability
to manufacture and sell our products.

There has been substantial litigation regardingmteand other intellectual property rights in thedical device industry. Patent
infringement litigation, which may be necessargmndorce patents issued to us or to defend oursealyaisist claimed infringement of the rights
of others, can be expensive and may involve a anbiat commitment of our resources
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which may divert resources from other uses. Advdeterminations in litigation or settlements cosidbject us to significant liabilities to third
parties, could require us to seek licenses frond §hérties, could prevent us from manufacturing selting our products or could fail to prewv:
competitors from manufacturing products similabtws. Any of these results could materially andeadely affect our business.

Expiring patents may affect our future sal

Most of our products are covered by patents thaglid, give us a degree of market exclusivityidgrthe term of the patent. The le:
life of a patent in the U.S. is 20 years from agggtiion. Our patents will expire at various datesuigh 2028. Upon patent expiration, our
competitors may introduce products using the saoienplogy. As a result of this possible increassompetition, we may need to reduce our
prices to maintain sales of our products, which ianake them less profitable. If we fail to devebopd successfully launch new products g
to the expiration of patents for our existing proy our sales and profits with respect to thoselypets could decline significantly. We may not
be able to develop and successfully launch morarambd replacement products before these and aitemtp expire.

United States patents related to our principal pctslexpire as follows:

Product Expiration dates
Clave® / MicroClave® Connector 11/2014-07/2016
CLC2000® Connector 12/2016

Click Lock® Technology 11/2014-07/2015
Custom Set Design and Manufacturing 01/2021

Spiros® Closed Male Connector 12/2024-05/2028
Genie® Closed Vial Access Device 05/2026

Y-Clave® Connector with Integral Check Valve 02/2025

Tego® Connector 07/2020-11/2025
Neutron® Connector 09/2025

Damage to any of our manufacturing facilities coingbair our ability to produce our product

A severe weather event, other natural or man-madesigr, labor difficulties, political unrest oryaother significant disruption
affecting one of our manufacturing facilities countdterially and adversely impact our businessnfiel condition and results of operations.

We have a single manufacturing facility for our @aroducts located in Salt Lake City, Utah. Oalt Eake City facility also
produces other components on which our manufagfunperations in Mexico and Slovakia rely.

In 2010, our Slovakia plant was severely floodearfrunusually high levels of rainfall that resuliach delay in opening this plant for
production and required extensive repairs to teéitiaand machinery.

Damage to any of our facilities could render ushlméo manufacture our products or require us doice the output of products at the
damaged facility.

We are dependent on single and limited source gnsphhich subjects our business and results ofajmns to risks of supplier business
interruptions.

Although we have risk mitigation plans in placetwiey suppliers, we have materials (such as retiag)gre critical to our ability to
manufacture our products, the supply of which isently from a sole supplier. We cannot be certhat our current suppliers will continue to
provide us with the quantities of materials thatreguire or satisfy our anticipated specificatiansl quality requirements. Any supply
interruption in limited or sole sourced raw matkrieould materially harm our ability to manufactang products until a new source of supply,
if any, could be identified and qualified. Althougle believe there are other suppliers of thesematerials, we may be unable to find a
sufficient alternative supply channel in a reasdmdiime or on commercially reasonable terms. Amfggenance failure on the part of our
suppliers could delay the development and manufaatiour products, which could have a materialessk effect on our business.
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Expansion of our manufacturing facilities may reésalinefficiencies which could have an adverseatfbn our operations and financial resu

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we experienced sigant production inefficiencies following a larggrease in production volume in
Mexico and the transfer of San Clemente produdtioBalt Lake City. In 2007, we expanded our Mexaulity and, anticipating further
increases in volume at that facility, increasedviloekforce. An additional expansion of our Mexieaility was completed in January 2011.
Turnover among new employees is unusually high éxikb, and the additional time spent in classro@iming and on the job training could
create production inefficiencies in Mexico in theure. The addition of new products will requidsldgional molding in Salt Lake City and
manual assembly work in Mexico and Slovakia. 1a@0ve started product shipments from our new pta8iovakia to customers in Europe.
Expansions of our production capacity will requsignificant management attention to avoid inefficies of the type experienced in 2006, an
the effect of any inefficiencies can be particylakpensive in Salt Lake City because of the higéd costs in this highly automated facility.
We are in the process of converting existing wanskospace into manufacturing space and a new adeamat our Salt Lake City plant, which
we expect to be completed by the second half 04201

Because we are dependent on Clave products forjer partion of our sales, any decline in sales ¢dv@ products could result in a significi
reduction in our sales and profits.

In 2013, Clave products accounted for approxinged&Pb of our revenue. We depend heavily on sdl€fave products, especially
sales of Clave products to Hospira, which decre&Sed million in 2013 compared to 2012. Most of sates of Clave products are in the
United States. Future sales increases for Clavéugte may depend on increases in sales of custoision systems, expansion in the
international markets or acquisition of new custmsiie the United States. We cannot give any asseartrat sales of Clave products will
increase or that we can sustain current profit inargn Clave products indefinitely.

We believe that the success of the Clave has metlyand will continue to motivate, competitorsigvelop one piece needleless
connectors. In addition to products that emulagectimaracteristics of the Clave, it is possible dthers could develop new product concepts
technologies that are functionally equivalent guegior to the Clave. If other manufacturers sudedlgsdevelop and market effective products
that are competitive with Clave products, Clavesalould decline, we could lose market share, andould encounter sustained price and
profit margin erosion.

Because we operate in international markets, wesatgect to political and economic risks that wendd face in the United State

We operate in a global market. Global operatioessabject to risks, including political and econoinistability, general economic
conditions, imposition of government controls, tied to comply with a wide variety of foreign anditdd States export laws, trade
restrictions and the greater difficulty of admieishg business overseas. As our operations ard kalated in Europe and other areas outside
the United States increase, we may face new clygieand uncertainties, although we can give naasse that such operations and sales wil
increase.

International sales pose additional risks relateccbompetition with larger international companiasdaestablished local companies,
possibly higher cost structure, our ability to ofereign manufacturing facilities that can opergfitably and higher credit risk

We have undertaken an initiative to increase oiarirational sales, and have distribution arrangésnarell the principal countries in
Western Europe, the Pacific Rim, Middle East, Lé&tinerica, Canada and South Africa. We plan toisathost other areas of the world. We
export most of our products sold internationallynfirthe United States, Mexico and Slovakia. Ourgipal competitors in international mark
consist of much larger companies as well as smeadlempanies already established in the countriesvitiich we sell our products. Our cost
structure is often higher than that of our compesibecause of the relatively high cost of transpgmproduct to some local markets as well as
our competitors’ lower local labor costs in somakets. For these reasons, among others, we expepen manufacturing facilities in foreign
locations. There is no certainty that we will béealo open local manufacturing facilities or tHadge facilities will operate on a profitable ba

Our international sales are subject to higher tmisks than sales in the United States. Many ofdistributors are small and may not
be well capitalized. Payment terms are relativehygl The European hospitals tend to be signifigasitiwer in payment which has resulted in
an increase to our days sales outstanding fromquswyears. Our prices to our international distrors, outside of Europe, for product ship
to the customers from the United States or Mexieoggnerally denominated in U.S. dollars, but thesale prices are set in their local
currency. A decline in the value of the local
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currency in relation to the U.S. dollar may advirséfect their ability to profitably sell in themarket the products they buy from us, and may
adversely affect their ability to make payment $dfar the products they purchase. Legal recounsedn-payment of indebtedness may be
uncertain. These factors all contribute to a paaéfdr credit losses.

Our operations may be adversely impacted by ouosxye to risks related to foreign currency excharaes.

We market our products in certain foreign markkteugh our subsidiaries and other internationdtidistors. The related sales
agreements may provide for payments in a foreigreasy. Accordingly, our operating results are eabjo fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. When the U.S. dollar weakens dgbhase currencies, the dollar value of foreigrn-enicy denominated revenue and expense
increases, and when the dollar strengthens aghiest currencies, the dollar value of foreign-awryedenominated revenue and expense
decreases. We are exposed to foreign currencynigiutstanding foreign currency denominated ret¥égand payables. Changes in exchi
rates may adversely affect our results of operati@ur primary foreign currency exchange rate expssare currently with the Euro and
Mexican Peso against the U.S. dollar.

We currently do not hedge against our foreign awayeexchange rate risks and therefore believe xquosire to these risks may be
higher than if we entered into hedging transactiorduding forward exchange contracts or simitestiuments. If we decide in the future to
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts terapt to reduce the risk related to foreign curyegxchange rates, these contracts may not
mitigate the potential adverse impact on our finanesults due to the variability of timing and aumt of payments under these contracts. In
addition, these types of contracts may themselgasefinancial harm to us and have inherent lesfateunter-party risk over which we would
have no control.

Continuing pressures to reduce healthcare costs awlagrsely affect our prices. If we cannot reduesmufiacturing costs of existing and new
products, our sales may not grow and our profitiégpinay decline

Increasing awareness of healthcare costs, pultéiceist in healthcare reform and continuing presBorae Medicare, Medicaid, group
purchasing organizations and other payers to redosts in the healthcare industry, as well as agirg competition from other protective
products, could make it more difficult for us tdl gir products at current prices. In the event tha market will not accept current prices for
our products, our sales and profits could be aéleedffected. We believe that our ability to incseaur market share and operate profitably ir
the long term may depend in part on our abilityeiduce manufacturing costs on a per unit basisigirdigh volume production using highly
automated molding and assembly systems. If we abla to reduce unit manufacturing costs, we mayriadle to increase our market share
for Clave products or may lose market share toratése products, including competitors’ produ@snilarly, if we cannot reduce unit
manufacturing costs of new products as product@uanaes increase, we may not be able to sell nedyats profitably or gain any meaningful
market share. Any of these results would adverastéct our future results of operations.

Increased competition in our critical care prodiret resulted in management's decision to decreassaverage selling prices on all
critical care products. The price reductions wetd effect in the middle of 2011 with the goal efaining existing customers and attracting
new customers. We can provide no assurances tsinears will purchase products from us. Continugcepressures could reduce our ability
to effectively compete in this market.

If we are unable to compete successfully on thesldiproduct innovation, quality, conveniencecprand rapid delivery with large
companies that have substantially greater resousteklarger distribution networks than us, we maypable to maintain market share, in
which case our sales may not grow and our profitgbinay be adversely affected.

The market for infusion products is intensely cotitpe. We believe that our ability to compete dege upon continued product
innovation, the quality, convenience and reliapitif our products, access to distribution chanmesent protection and pricing. The ability to
compete effectively depends on our ability to difétiate our products based on safety featuresiugtajuality, cost effectiveness, ease of use
and convenience, as well as our ability to percaive respond to changing customer needs. We ereraighificant competition in our
markets both from large established medical dewiaaufacturers and from smaller companies. Manhegé firms have introduced
competitive products with protective features navided by the conventional products and methodg #tre intended to replace. Most of our
current and prospective competitors have econondagher resources substantially greater thananasare well established as suppliers to
the healthcare industry. Several large, establisloetpetitors offer broad product lines and haventseecessful in obtaining full-line contracts
with a significant number of hospitals and groupchasing organizations to supply all of their infusproduct requirements. There is no
assurance that our competitors will not substdmptintrease resources devoted to the developmartufacture and marketing of products
competitive with our products. The successful impatation of such a strategy by one or more ofcounpetitors could materially and
adversely affect us.
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If we do not successfully develop and commercialit®nced or new products that remain competititle mew products or alternativ
technologies developed by others, we could loseney opportunities and customers, and our abititgrow our business would be impaired.

The medical device industry is characterized bydrapoduct development and technological advanebgsh places our products at
risk of obsolescence. Our long-term success arfit prargins depend upon the development and sutdessmmercialization of new
products, new or improved technologies and additiapplications of our technology. The researchdeklopment process is tinsensuming
and costly, and may not result in products or @aitbns that we can successfully commercialize. céfegive no assurance that any such nev
products will be successful or that they will beggted in the marketplace.

The high level of competition and group purchagsinganizations place pressure on our profit margamsl we may not be able to compete
successfully.

The disposable medical device segment of the heat#hindustry in which we operate is highly conitpet and is experiencing both
horizontal and vertical consolidation. The highdeef competition in our industry places pressurgmfit margins. Some of our competitors
have greater resources than we have. These coivpgtiessures could have a material adverse affeour business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Health care reform and the related pressure taagonbsts have led to the advent of group purclgasiganizations in the United
States. These group purchasing organizations erttepreferred supplier arrangements with one oremoanufacturers of medical products in
return for price discounts to members of the grpupchasing organizations. If we are not able t@iobhew preferred supplier commitments
from major group purchasing organizations or rethose commitments that we currently have, whiehgamerally terminable by either party
for any reason upon the expiration of a definedceqteriod, our sales and profitability could beerdely affected. However, even if we are
able to obtain and retain preferred supplier commaitts from group purchasing organizations, they naydeliver high levels of compliance
by their members, meaning that we may not be abidfset the negative impact of lower per-unit paor lower margins with increases in unit
sales or in market share.

If demand for our products were to decline sigaifitty, we might not be able to recover the cogtusfexpensive automated molding ¢
assembly equipment and tooling, which could havaduerse effect on our results of operations.

Our production tooling is relatively expensive, méach “module,” which consists of an automatedmabdy machine and the molds
and molding machines which mold the componentdjrapseveral million dollars. Most of the modules for the Clave product family. If tt
demand for these products changes significantlychwvbould happen with the loss of a customer dnange in product mix, it may be
necessary for us to recognize an impairment charghe value of the production tooling becausedst may not be recovered through
production of saleable product, which could advgra#fect our financial condition.

We have been and will be ordering production malag equipment for our new products. We expectderossemi-automated or fully
automated assembly machines for other new produ@s14 . If we do not achieve significant saléthese new products, it might be
necessary for us to recognize an impairment charghe value of the production tooling becausedsts may not be recovered through
production of saleable product, which could advgra#fect our financial condition.

If we cannot obtain additional custom tooling ampigment on a timely basis to enable us to meeaddrfor our products, we might |
unable to increase our sales or might lose custairiarwhich case our sales could decline.

We expanded our manufacturing capacity substapirailecent years, and we expect that continuedm®sipn may be necessary.
Molds and automated assembly machines generally &dong lead-time with vendors, often nine momthlonger. Inability to secure such
tooling in a timely manner, or unexpected increasgsoduction demands, could cause us to be uniabteet customer orders. Such inability
could cause customers to seek alternatives toroglupts.

Increases in the cost of petrole-based and natural gas-based products or loss pplsucould have an adverse effect on our profitghil
Most of the materials used in our products arengeglastics and other material that depend upaor iatural gas as their raw
material. Crude oil markets are affected by pditiencertainty in the Middle East, and there isaasurance that crude oil supplies will not be

interrupted in the future. Any such interruptiamutd have an adverse effect on our ability to
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produce, or the cost to produce, our productso Alsude oil and natural gas prices reached rduigits in recent years. Our suppliers have
passed some of their cost increases on to usf andh prices are sustained or increase furtherswppliers may pass further cost increases ol
to us. In addition to the effect on resin priceansportation costs have increased because offdw ef higher crude oil prices, and we believe
most of these costs have been passed on to uabiity to recover these increased costs may deppod our ability to raise prices on our
products. In the past, we have rarely raised pacekit is uncertain that we would be able to réigsn to recover higher prices from our
suppliers. Our inability to raise prices in thogewmstances, or to otherwise recover these costdd have an adverse effect on our
profitability.

Our business could suffer if we lose the serviéé®yp personnel.

We are dependent upon the management and leadefsiup executive team, as well as other membeaiposenior management
team. If one or more of these individuals werebhl@ar unwilling to continue in his or her presposition, our business would be disrupted
and we might not be able to find replacements timaly basis or with the same level of skill anghexence, which could have an adverse
effect on our business. We do not have "key pérsi@ninsurance policies on any of our employees.

Our ability to market our products in the Unitechfes and other countries may be adversely afféttma products or our manufacturing
processes fail to qualify under applicable standaofithe FDA and regulatory agencies in other coast

Government regulation is a significant factor ie ttevelopment, marketing and manufacturing of esadpcts. Our products are
subject to clearance by the United States Foodand Administration (“FDA”) under a number of stega including the Food Drug and
Cosmetics Act (“FDC Act”). Each of our current pumtis has qualified, and we anticipate that any pesducts we are likely to market will
qualify for clearance under the FDA’s expedited-prarket notification procedure pursuant to SecEtf(k) of the FDC Act. However, certain
of our new products may require a longer time feaance than we have experienced in the pastand tan be no assurance that a PMA
application will not be required. Further, thesend assurance that other new products developed by any manufacturers that we might
acquire will qualify for expedited clearance rathligan a more time consuming pre-market approvalgatore or that, in any case, they will
receive clearance from the FDA. FDA regulatory psses are time consuming and expensive. Unceesiasi to the time required to obtain
FDA clearances or approvals could adversely affeetiming and expense of new product introductidmsddition, we must manufacture our
products in compliance with the FDA’s Quality Syst®egulations, which cover the methods and docuatientof the design, testing,
production, component suppliers control, qualityurance, labeling, packaging, storage and shipgfilogir products.

The FDA has broad discretion in enforcing the FD&, And noncompliance with the FDC Act could regubi variety of regulatory
actions ranging from warning letters, product déters, device alerts or field corrections to mandatecalls, seizures, injunctive actions and
civil or criminal penalties. If the FDA determintisat we have seriously violated applicable regofe] it could seek to enjoin us from
marketing our products or we could be otherwiseeegkly affected by delays or required changeswpreducts. In addition, changes in FI
or other federal or state, health, environmentaadety regulations or in their application couttVersely affect our business.

To market our products in the European CommunBC("), we must conform to additional requirementshef EC and demonstrate
conformance to established quality standards apticaple directives. As a manufacturer that desigmenufactures and markets its own
devices, we must comply with the quality managensértdards of ISO 13485 (2012). Those quality stedslare similar to the FDA’s Quality
System Regulations. Manufacturers of medical dewnast also be in conformance with EC Directiveshsas Council Directive 93/42/EEC
(“Medical Device Directive”) and their applicablarsexes. Those regulations assure that medical eesi® both safe and effective and meet
all applicable established standards prior to beiagketed in the EC. Once a manufacturer and iteg are in conformance with the Medical
Device Directive, the “CE” Mark maybe affixed ts idevices. The CE Mark gives devices an unobsutlunéry to all the member countries of
the EC. There is no assurance that we will contioumeet the requirements for distribution of otmducts in Europe.

Distribution of our products in other countries ni@ysubject to regulation in those countries, &edet is no assurance that we will
obtain necessary approvals in countries in whiclwanst to introduce our products.

Product liability claims could be costly to defesnttd could expose us to lo:

The use of our products exposes us to an inhesdnof product liability. Patients, healthcare werk or healthcare providers who
claim that our products have resulted in injuryldanitiate product liability litigation seekingiige damage awards against us. Costs of the
defense of such litigation, even if successful|@¢de substantial. We maintain insurance agairedymt liability and defense costs in the
amount of $10,000,000 per occurrence. There issaarance that we will
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successfully defend claims, if any, arising witBpect to products or that the insurance we carhbeisufficient. A successful claim against
in excess of insurance coverage could materiallyaatversely affect us. Furthermore, there is narasse that product liability insurance will
continue to be available to us on acceptable terms.

We may be required to implement a costly produzdlte

In the event that any of our products proves tddfective, we can voluntarily recall, or the FDAather regulatory agencies could
require us to redesign or implement a recall of, @our products. We believe that any recall daglsult in significant costs to us and
significant adverse publicity, which could harm aibility to market our products in the future. Tigbut may not be possible to quantify the
economic impact of a recall, it could have a matexdverse effect on our business, financial caor&nd results of operations.

We generally offer a limited warranty for produeturns which are due to defects in quality and waakship. We attempt to estimate
our potential liability for future product returasd establish reserves on our financial statemem@siounts that we believe will be sufficient to
address our warranty obligations; however, ouradtability for product returns may significantéxceed the amount of our reserves. If we
underestimate our potential liability for futureogduct returns, or if unanticipated events resuteburns that exceed our historical experience,
our financial condition and operating results cduddmaterially and adversely affected.

Our Stockholder Rights Plan, provisions in our deadocuments and Delaware law could prevent oagl@l change in control, which could
reduce the market price of our common stock.

On July 15, 1997, our Board of Directors adopt&tackholder Rights Plan (the “Plan”) and, pursuarnhe Plan, declared a dividend
distribution of one Right for each outstanding shafrour common stock to stockholders of recorthatclose of business on July 28, 1997.
Plan expired in 2007 and our Board of Directorspaeld an Amended and Restated Rights Agreementyir2007. Under its current
provisions, each Right entitles the registered éotd purchase from us one one-hundredth of a sfiéBeries A Junior participating Preferred
Stock, no par value, at a purchase price of $22%pe onehundredth of a share, subject to adjustment. Tae Bldesigned to afford the Bo
of Directors a great deal of flexibility in dealimgth any takeover attempts and is designed toecpassons interested in acquiring us to deal
directly with the Board of Directors, giving it apportunity to negotiate a transaction that maxasigtockholder values. The Plan may,
however, have the effect of discouraging persams fattempting to acquire us.

Investors should refer to the description of thenRh our 2007 10-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission.

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws inclugl@visions that may discourage or prevent cetigies of transactions involving
an actual or potential change of control, includirsgnsactions in which the stockholders might otligs receive a premium for their shares 1
then current market prices. In addition, the BaafrBirectors has the authority to issue sharesrefdPred Stock and fix the rights and
preferences thereof, which could have the effecketdying or preventing a change of control otheeadesired by the stockholders. In addit
certain provisions of Delaware law may discouratpay or prevent someone from acquiring or mergiitg us.

The price of our common stock has been and mayncento be highly volatile due to many factors.

The market for small and mid-market capitalizatimmpanies can be highly volatile, and we have égpeed significant volatility in
the price of our common stock in the past. Fronudan2011 through December 2013, our trading paoged from a high of $85.00 per share
to a low of $35.38 per share. We believe thatfacsuch as quarter-to-quarter fluctuations inrfaial results, differences between stock
analysts’ expectations and actual quarterly andiamesults, new product introductions by us or@ampetitors, changing regulatory
environments, litigation, changes in healthcarmbeirsement policies, sales or the perception imtaeket of possible sales of common stock
by insiders, market rumors and substantial produabtrs could contribute to the volatility in theqgar of our common stock. General economic
trends unrelated to our performance such as reresyicycles and changing interest rates may algeraely affect the market price of our
common stock; the recent macroeconomic downturidadepress our stock price for some time.

Most of our common stock is held by, or includedatounts managed by, institutional investors anagars. Several of those
institutions own or manage a significant percentaigeur outstanding shares, with the ten largestrasts accounting for 39% of our
outstanding shares at the end of 2013 . If onearerof the institutions or if our other large stbholders should decide to reduce or eliminate
their position in our common stock, it could caassgnificant decrease in the price of our comntonks
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None

Item 2. Properties.

We own a 39,000 square foot building and a 28,@@@ue foot building in San Clemente, Californi@58,000 square foot building in
Salt Lake City, Utah, a 250,000 square foot bugdam approximately 94 acres of land in Ensenadg Balifornia, Mexico, a 23,000 square
foot building in Roncanova, Italy and a 77,000 sguaot building on approximately 11 acres of lam&/rable, Slovakia. We lease a building
in Ludenscheid, Germany.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We have not been required to pay any penalty téRBefor failing to make disclosures required wigéispect to certain transactions
have been identified by the IRS as abusive ortihaé a significant tax avoidance purpose.

In an action filed July 27, 2007 entitléeld Medical, Inc. v. RyMed Technologies, Inc. in tieited States District Court for the District
of Delaware (the "District Court"), ICU Medical,dn(“ICU") alleged that RyMed Technologies, IncR{fMed”) infringes certain ICU patents
through the manufacture and sale of its original emrrent InVision-Plus valves. ICU seeks monetlagnages and injunctive relief and
continues to vigorously pursue this matter.

On May 11, 2012, a bench trial was heldRgiVied's prosecution history estoppel defense. €piesnber 30, 2013, the Court ruled that
ICU could not overcome this defense based on thtride of equivalents. We are currently considgiptions to appeal or to proceed to the
damages phase of the case.

We are from time to time involved in vargoother legal proceedings, either as a defendapitontiff, most of which are routine litigation
in the normal course of business. We believe tiatesolution of the legal proceedings in whichareinvolved will not have a material
adverse effect on our financial position or resaftsperations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable

22




Table of Contents

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sto&kholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seurities.

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQdbI18blect Market under the symbol “ICWihce our initial public offering o
March 31, 1992. The following table sets fortlr, thoe quarters indicated, the high and low clogiriges for our common stock quoted by
NASDAQ:

2013 High Low

First quarter $ 63.91 $ 56.01
Second quarter 75.7(C 58.3¢
Third quarter 75.9( 67.8¢
Fourth quarter 68.7¢ 60.8¢
2012 High Low

First quarter $ 4957 $ 44.41
Second quarter 54.0¢ 47 .5¢
Third quarter 61.9¢ 51.2(
Fourth quarter 62.61 57.1(

We have never paid dividends and do not anticipaténg dividends in the foreseeable future as thar® of Directors intends to
retain future earnings for use in our busines® uuirchase our shares. Any future determinaticio @asyment of dividends or purchase of our
shares will depend upon our financial conditiosutes of operations and such other factors as tadof Directors deems relevant.

As of January 31, 2014 , we had 79 sto ckholdersadrd. This does not include persons whose stoicknominee or “street name”
accounts through brokers.

Securities authorized for issuance under equitypsareation plans is discussed in Part 111, Item flthis Annual Report on Form 10-

Issuer Repurchase of Equity Securities

In July 2010, our Board of Directors approved a gwn stock purchase plan to purchase $40.0 millfauocommon stock. This
plan has no expiration date.

The following is a summary of our stock repurchgsaetivity during the fourth quarter of 2013 :

Shares Approximate
purchased dollar value that
as part of a may yet be
Average publicly purchased
Shares price paid announced under the
Period purchased per share program program
10/01/2013 - 10/31/2013 — 3 — — % 28,089,00
11/01/2013 - 11/30/2013 — 8 — — 28,089,00
12/01/2013 - 12/31/2013 — 3 = = 28,089,00
Fourth quarter 2013 total —  $ — — % 28,089,00
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN FROM JANUARY, 2009 TO DECEMBER 31, 2013 OF ICU MEDICAL, INC.,
NASDAQ AND NASDAQ MEDICAL SUPPLIES INDEX

The following graph shows the total stockholdeureton our common stock based on the market pfitgeocommon stock from
December 31, 2008 to December 31, 2013 and thierédtans of the NASDAQ U.S. Index and NASDAQ MealiSupplies Index for the same
period.

As a result of a change in the total return datderavailable through NASDAQ's vendor provider, itiiex used to prepare the graph
below was changed to NASDAQ OMX Global Indexespiavious years, we used the Center for ResearSkaunrity Prices ("CRSP") index

$250

$200 /

$150 ,
/ /

$100

$50
$0
12/31/08  12/31/09  12/31/10  12/31/11 1213112 12/31/13
CICU Medical Inc =NASDAG US.Ind NASDAQ Madical Suoplies Ind
12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013
ICU Medical, Inc. $ 1000 $  109.9¢ $  1101¢ $  135.7¢ $  183.8¢ $  192.2
NASDAQ U.S. Index $ 10000 $  1292¢ $  151.9¢ $  1524: $  177.4¢ $  236.8¢

NASDAQ Medical Supplies Index  $ 100.0C $ 119.5( $ 128.4F $ 123.5¢ % 152.07 $ 186.2(

Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2008 in I@didal Inc.’s common stock, the NASDAQ U.S. Indexi dhe NASDAQ
Medical Supplies Index and that all dividends,rnfawere reinvested.
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The following graph shows the total stockholdeuneton our common stock based on the market pfitteeacommon stock from
December 31, 2008 to December 31, 2013 and thierédteins of the NASDAQ U.S. Index and NASDAQ Medli©evices, Instruments and
Supplies, Manufacturers and Distributers Stockexrior the same period, using CRSP indexes.
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$150 _ ///
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$0
12/31/08  12/31/09  12/31/10  12/31/11 1213112 12/31/13
12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013
ICU Medical, Inc. $ 1000 $  109.9¢ $  1101¢ $  135.7¢ $  183.8¢ $ = 192.2
NASDAQ U.S. Index $ 10000 $  143.7¢ $ 17017 $  171.06 $  202.4( $ = 2819

NASDAQ Medical Devices Index $ 100.0C $ 1458 $ 1555 $ 178.67 $ 198.9C $ 233.0¢

Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2008 in 1@did4l Inc.’s common stock, the NASDAQ U.S. Indexi dhe NASDAQ
Medical Devices, Instruments and Supplies, Manufaes and Distributers Stocks Index and that &idéinds, if any, were reinvested.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

INCOME DATA:
Revenue
Net sales
Other
Total revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Legal settlement
Gain on sale of assets
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Net income per common share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends per share
CASH FLOW DATA:
Total cash flows from operations

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash, cash equivalents and investment securitie

Working capital
Total assets
Stockholders’ equity

ICU MEDICAL, INC.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 31305t $ 316,320 $ 30164: $ 28235 $ 228,43

66C 547 B55E 602 54C

313,71¢ 316,86¢ 302,19¢ 282,95¢ 228,97:

158,98« 160,35¢ 159,84: 153,98¢ 122,69!

154,73. 156,51( 142,35 128,97( 106,27t

90,37¢ 84,60« 85,28’ 76,63¢ 68,20¢

12,40° 10,63( 8,58¢ 4,67¢ 2,64t
— — (2,500 — —
— — (14,247) — —
102,78: 95,23¢ 77,13 81,31« 70,85(
51,94¢ 61,27¢ 65,22: 47,65¢ 35,42¢
765 562 1,201 12¢ 1,181

52,71« 61,83¢ 66,42: 47,78¢ 36,60"

(12,296 (20,558 (21,759 (17,867 (11,626
$ 40,41¢  $ 41,28. $ 44,66¢ $ 29,927 % 24,98:
$ 278 % 290 % 3.2 % 220 % 1.7¢C
$ 268 % 28C $ 3.1t $ 21 $ 1.67

14,68¢ 14,22 13,83¢ 13,61 14,72(

15,27 14,72¢ 14,16: 13,85t 14,98
$ — 3 — $ — 3 — 3 —
$ 65,72t $ 66,27. $ 64,48° $ 33,09f $ 51,13¢

As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 296,89, $ 226,15¢ $ 159,98' $ 93,357 $ 108,13!
$ 36741 $ 296,388 $ 231,090 $ 179,48 $ 172,66t
$ 499,64. $ 428511 $ 361,110 $ 309,64: $ 307,57
$ 464,728 $ 39085 $ 32057 $ 271,70« $ 263,42
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.

We are a leader in the development, manufacturesaledof innovative medical devices used in infagleerapy, oncology and critical
care applications. Our products improve patient@mes by helping to prevent bloodstream infectibinsugh the use of hemodynamic
monitoring for critically ill patients and proteng healthcare workers from exposure to infectidesabes or hazardous drugs. Our complete
product line includes needlefree infusion connestoustom infusion systems, catheters and hemodgmaonitoring systems and closed
system transfer devices and automated compounaiehsifidling hazardous drugs.

Business Overview

In the early 1990's, we launched the Clave, anvatige one-piece, needlefree infusion connectioricge The Clave is a leader in
worldwide connector sales. The Clave's unique desigures compliance with needlefree policies srafiits passive technology which
cannot accept a needle. Our Clave products acabfmt&5% of our revenues in 2013 .

In the late 1990s, we commenced a transition frggroduct-centered company to an innovative, fdtient, low-cost manufacturer
of custom infusion sets, using processes that Weveecan be readily applied to a variety of disgime medical devices. This strategy has
enabled us to capture revenue on the entire infusitivery system, and not just a component ofilstem. We have furthered this effort to
include all of our proprietary devices beyond thHave.

One of our growth strategies is through acquisgtiohcompanies, assets or product lines. We aréncmusly exploring acquisition
opportunities, however there is no assurance teawilV be successful in finding future acquisitiopportunities or integrating new product
lines into our existing business.

Another strategy for reducing our dependence orcowrent proprietary products has been to introdwesg products. In 2013, we
introduced CardioFlo and ChemoLock closed systamsfer device and components. CardioFlo is a milyrirevasive monitoring sensor for
use on critical care patients to deliver accuratéraliable hemodynamic monitoring data. ChemolLjpek/ents the escape of hazardous drt
vapor concentrations, blocks the transfer of emvivental contaminants into the system, and elimgagzdlestick injuries while
minimizing hazardous drug exposure. In 2011 and®2@e introduced the Neutron, a catheter pateneicdeising Clave technology, the
NanoClave, a smaller Clave product designed fonat and pediatric patients and the Diana Hazar@yug Compounding System,
automated sterile compounding system for prepdramprdous drugs. We can provide no assurance ¢haili\be able to successfully
manufacture, market and sell these new products.

We are also expanding our business through inadesedes to medical product manufacturers, indepdrdistributors and through
direct sales to the end users of our product. &kegpansions include, but are not limited to, dkLagreement with Premier, the extension o
the term of our agreement with MedAssets and ol 2@yreement with Novation covering all our criticare products. Each of these
organizations is a U.S. healthcare purchasing m&twh/e also potentially face substantial incredsempetition in our Clave business.
Therefore, we are focusing on increasing produeeld@ment, acquisition, sales and marketing efftartsustom infusion systems, oncology
products, critical care products and other prodtiaslend themselves to customization and newymrisdn the U.S. and international markets

Our products are used in hospitals and alternatiaalesites in more than 55 countries throughoetvtiorld. We categorize our
products into three main market segments: InfuSioerapy, Critical Care and Oncology. Products detsif our main market segments are
grouped under Other. Our primary products include:

Infusion Therapy

. Needlefree connector products
° MicroClave and MicroClave Clear
° Anti-Microbial MicroClave
° Neutron
° NanoClave
° Clave
° Y-Clave
° Anti-Microbial Clave
. Custom infusion sets
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Critical Care
. Hemodynamic monitoring systems
° Transpac disposable pressure transducers
° Safeset closed needlefree blood conservationregste
° CardioFlo hemodynamic monitoring sensor system
° Custom monitoring systems
. Catheters
° Advanced sensor catheters
° Pulmonary artery thermodilution catheters
° Central venous oximetry catheters
° Multi-lumen central venous catheters
. Custom angiography and interventional radiology k
Oncology
. ChemoLock closed system transfer device and coeus
. ChemoClave closed system transfer device and opers including:
° Genie closed vial access device
° Spiros closed male luer
. Custom preparation and administration sets andssories
. Diana hazardous drug compounding system
Other
. Tego needlefree hemodialysis connector
. Lopez enteral valve

Our largest customer is Hospira. Hospira accoufte89% , 42% and 42% of our worldwide revenueg0i3 , 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively. Our relationship with Hospira hasrbaad will continue to be important. We curremtignufacture custom L.V. sets for sale by
Hospira and jointly promote the products underrthme SetSource. We expect revenues from salessipird@f Clave products, custom
infusion sets, oncology products and new productemain a significant percentage of our revenuésspira has a significant share of the I.V.
set market in the U.S. and provides us accesataribrket. We expect that worldwide sales to Haswill be important to our growth for
Clave, custom infusion sets, oncology productsamdther products worldwide.

Revenues for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $313.7omi/l6316.9 million and $302.2 million , respeclivéVe currently sell
substantially all of our products to medical pradmanufacturers, independent distributors and tjinalirect sales to the end user. Most of oul
independent distributors handle the full line of oifusion administration products. We sell oi.ladministration and oncology products
under two agreements with Hospira. Under a 1998eagent, Hospira purchases Clave products, priligipalk, non-sterile connectors and
oncology products. Under a 2001 agreement, wecgstbm infusion sets to Hospira under a progréderned to as SetSource. Our 1995 and
2001 agreements with Hospira provide Hospira withditional exclusive and nonexclusive rights tdrdisite all existing ICU Medical
products worldwide with terms that extend to 20¥8e sell invasive monitoring and angiography toeipendent distributors and through dit
sales. We also sell certain other products toralbaun of other medical product manufacturers.

We believe that as healthcare providers continwther consolidate or join major buying organiaa, the success of our products
will depend, in part, on our ability, either indeplently or through strategic relationships sucbwsHospira relationship, to secure long-term
contracts with large healthcare providers and majying organizations. As a result of this mamegtand distribution strategy we derive most
of our revenues from a relatively small numberisfributors and manufacturers. The loss of aegiatrelationship with a customer or a
decline in demand for a manufacturing customerpcts could have a material adverse effect oroparating results.

We believe that achievement of our growth objectmeridwide will require increased efforts by usales and marketing and proc
development; however, there is no assurance thatilvee successful in implementing our growth sgy. The custom products market is
small, when compared to the larger market of stahgdeoducts, and we could encounter customer eggistto custom products. Further, we
could encounter increased competition as other eoip see opportunity in this market. Product igreent or acquisition efforts may not
succeed, and even if we do develop or acquireiadditproducts, there is no assurance that weagflieve profitable sales of such products.
An adverse change in our relationship with Hospiraa deterioration of Hospira’s position in therke, could have an adverse effect on us.
Increased expenditures for sales and marketingpeottlict acquisition and development may not yiaslicbd results when expected, or
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at all. While we have taken steps to control thédes, there are certain risks that may be outsfdmir control, and there is no assurance that
steps we have taken will succeed.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, total revenues by market segment and ijsrrpeoduct groups as a percentage
of total revenues:

Product line 2013 2012 2011
Clave products 35% 37% 36%
Custom infusion therapy 29% 27% 25%
Other infusion therapy 3% 4% 5%
Infusion therapy 67% 68% 66%
Critical care 17% 17% 20%
Oncology 12% 10% 8%
Tego 3% 3% 3%
Other products/other revenue 1% 2% 2%
Other 4% 5% 6%
10C% 10C% 10C%

We have an ongoing effort to increase systems dltjesd) improve manufacturing efficiency, reduedbr costs, reduce time needed
to produce an order, and minimize investment ireimtory. These include the use of automated asgesgoipment for new and existing
products and use of larger molds and molding mashinn 2006, we centralized our proprietary majdmSalt Lake City and expanded our
production facility in Mexico, which took over tmeajority of our manual assembly previously don&ait Lake City. In 2010 and early 2011,
we expanded our production facility in Mexico. &td 2010, we completed construction of an asseplaht in Slovakia that serves our
European product distribution. We are also conngréxisting warehouse space into manufacturingespad a new clean room in our Salt
Lake City plant, which we expect to be completedhi®/second half of 2014. We may establish additiproduction facilities outside the U..
There is no assurance that we will achieve sudoesstablishing manufacturing facilities outside th.S.

We distribute products through three distributibiarnels. Product revenues for each distributiomicblaas a percentage of total
channel product revenue were as follows:

Channel 2013 2012 2011

Medical product manufacturers 35% 40% 3%
Domestic distributors/direct sales 36% 35% 35%
International customers 2% 25% 26%
Total 10C% 10C% 10C(%

Sales to international customers do not includ& Rldve products sold to Hospira in the U.S. betduis 1.V. products manufactured
by Hospira and exported. Those sales are inclutsdles to medical product manufacturers. Othesgal Hospira for destinations outside the
U.S. are included in sales to international custsme

Seasonality/Quarterly Results

The healthcare business in the United States jectio quarterly fluctuations due to frequencylioess during the seasons, elective
procedures, and over the last few years, the ecgnionicurope, the healthcare business generallyssttown in the summer months due to
vacations resulting in fewer elective surgeriessoAn Europe, hospitals’ budgets tend to finiskhatend of the year which may cause fewer
purchases in the last three months of the yeaosggitals await their new budgets in January. Miitaah, we can experience fluctuations in net
sales as a result of variations in the orderintepas of our largest customers, which may be drimene by production scheduling and their
inventory levels, and less by seasonality. Oueesps often do not fluctuate in the same manneetasales, which may cause fluctuations in
operating income that are disproportionate to flatibns in our revenue.

29




Table of Contents
Year-to-Year Comparisons
We present summarized income statement data in@teelected Financial Data. The following tableves, for the three most recent

years, the percentages of each income statemeitrcéprelation to revenue

Percentage of Revenues

2013 2012 2011

Revenue

Net sales 100% 100% 10C %

Other —% —% — %
Total revenues 100% 100% 10C %
Gross margin 49% 49% 47 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 28% 27% 28 %
Research and development expenses 4% 3% 3%
Legal settlement —% —% (D%
Gain on sale of assets —% —% (5)%
Total operating expenses 32% 30% 25 %
Income from operations 17% 19% 22%
Other income —% —% — %
Income before income taxes 17% 19% 22 %
Income taxes 4% 6% 7%
Net income 13% 13% 15%

Comparison of 2013 to 2012
Revenues were $313.7 million in 2013 , compare®Bti6.9 million in 2012 .

Domestic sales: Net domestic sales in 2013 were $223.1 millioompared to net domestic sales of $237.0 milliok0h2 , a
decrease of 6% .

Net domestic sales to Hospira in 2013 were $108llfbm, a decrease of $12.9 million , or 11% ,Mfr@012 . The decrease was
primarily due to $12.7 million , or 11% , lower usion therapy sales in 2013 . The decrease inioxfuberapy was due to modifications in
Hospira's inventory management, resulting in a $3ldon decrease in unit sales of Clave produat$1.8 million decrease in unit sales of
custom infusion sets and a $1.5 million decreasmihsales of other infusion products.

Net other domestic sales (excluding Hospira) in2@&re $114.9 million , a decrease of $1.0 millj@am 0.8% , from 2012 . Infusion
therapy sales increased $3.3 million , or 6% , f@gh2 , which was primarily from a $3.0 million lease in custom infusion set sales.
Oncology sales increased $1.1 million , or 17%nf2012 . Critical care sales decreased $3.5 millir 8% , from 2012 . Other product sales
decreased $1.9 million , or 16% , from 2012 . THwéased custom infusion set and oncology sales prémarily due to increased unit sales.
The critical care decrease was due to lower ufessarimarily from competition in this market. THecrease in other product sales was
primarily due to $1.2 million in lower renal sales a result of lower unit sales and the loss @fssibm our former diabetes product line, Orbit
which had contributed $0.3 million to sales in 20t Orbit product line was sold in November 20ad &rbit sales concluded in the first
quarter of 2012.

International sales: Net sales to international customers were $90.Bomiln 2013 , an increase of $10.7 million , oPA3from
2012 . Infusion therapy sales increased $5.3 millior 11% , from 2012 , which was from a $4.0 imillincrease in custom infusion set sales
and a $2.7 million increase in Clave product sglestially offset by a $1.3 million decrease inatinfusion therapy sales. Oncology sales
increased $6.2 million , or 41% , from 2012 . @aticare sales decreased by $0.5 million , or #%m 2012. Other product sales decrease(
$0.3 million , or 6% , from 2012 . The increasefiiusion therapy and oncology sales were fromdased unit sales from increased market
share and demographic growth. The decrease inalridare sales was from lower unit sales, primahilg to competition in this market. The
decrease in other product sales was primarily filoerioss of sales from our former diabetes protinet Orbit, which had contributed $0.6
million to sales in 2012.
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Geographically, our 201iaternational sales were primarily in Europe, tlaeifc Rim, Latin America and Canada. Sales in perdhe
Pacific Rim and Canada increased by $9.1 millionr 2013 international sales were favorably impatigdpproximately $1.5 million due to
the increase in the average exchange rate of tteet&the U.S. dollar compared to 2012.

Sales by market segment and other revenue: Net infusion therapy sales were $211.2 millio2@13 , a decrease of $4.1 million , or
2% , from 2012 . The decrease from 2012 was frorb &6llion in lower Clave product sales, $2.8 noifliin lower other infusion therapy
product sales, partially offset by $5.2 millioniicreased custom infusion set sales. The decreaSkve product sales and other infusion
therapy sales was primarily from lower sales to.Bi8spira. The increase in custom infusion sales fncan higher sales to domestic
distributors and through direct sales and hightarivational sales.

Net critical care sales were $51.5 million in 2QE3decrease of $4.0 million , or 7% , from 20The decrease was primarily due to
lower domestic sales due to competition.

Net oncology sales were $37.5 million in 2013 jramtease of $7.2 million , or 24% , from 2012 . Therease was from $6.2 million
in higher international sales, $1.1 million in higldomestic sales to distributors and through tseles, partially offset by $0.1 million in
lower domestic sales to Hospira.

Other product sales were $12.8 million , a decref$§2.5 million , or 16% , from 2012The decrease is primarily from $0.4 millior
lower renal sales and the loss of sales from aunéo diabetes product line, Orbit, which had cdntiéd $0.9 million to sales in the first qua
of 2012.

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andmegeshare income and was approximately $0.7 milid2013 and $0.5 million in
2012.

Gross margins for 2013 and 2012 were 49% in both years. Our tdvegght expense contributed approximately 0.5%uogross
margin and was offset by lower manufacturing ovadchabsorption.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) were $90.4 million , or 28% , of revenues in 20t8mpared with $84.6
million , or 27% , of revenues in 2012 . The needical device tax, which became effective in 2@IBtributed $1.8 million to the SG&A
increase in 2013 compared to 2012. Informationrtetdgy expenses increased $1.1 million and bad fdebtanty reserves increased $0.7
million in 2013 compared to 2012. We also incurg@d4 million in one-time charges associated wigtrategic transaction that did not go
forward.

Research and devel opment expenses (“R&D” ) were $12.4 million , or 4% , of revenue in 2013 pamed to $10.6 million , or 3% , of
revenue in 2012 . The increase in R&D expensespriatrarily from increased compensation and benéfits an increase of six R&D
employees and increased R&D project expenses. &0r itojects focus on filling in product line gapsr four product line target markets and
creating additional market opportunities.

Other income was $0.8 million in 2013 compared to $0.6 million2012 .

Income taxes were accrued at an estimated annual effectiveatizxaf 23% in 2013 compared to 33% in 201Zhe effective tax rate
differs from that computed at the federal statutatg of 35% principally because of the effectaykfgn and state income taxes, tax credits,
deductions for domestic production activities arstibte tax items, including the tax effects of ¢ixéension of the federal research and
development credit for the 2012 tax year and changé&lexican tax legislation both enacted in 2013.

Comparison of 2012 to 2011
Revenues were $316.9 million in 2012, compareB@2® million in 2011.

Domestic sales: Net domestic sales in 2012 were $237.0 millimmpared to net domestic sales of $224.5 millioGa1, an
increase of 6%.

Net domestic sales to Hospira in 2012 were $121llfom an increase of $5.5 million, or 5%, from 20 Infusion therapy sales
increased $2.7 million, or 2%, from 2011 and onggleales increased $2.7 million, or 46%, from 20&fusion therapy sales included a $0.9
million increase in sales of Clave products and & $nillion increase in sales of custom infusiotss&he increase in Clave product, custom
infusion product and oncology sales was from highet sales due to conversion of products solchémdlefree connectors and increased
market share through Hospira.
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Net other domestic sales (excluding Hospira) in2@&re $115.9 million, an increase of $7.0 million6%, from 2011. Infusion
therapy sales increased $8.7 million, or 18%, f&fiil, which was primarily from a $4.5 million inase in Clave product sales and a $3.9
million increase in custom infusion set sales. Qugy sales increased $2.0 million, or 44% from 2Qftical care sales decreased $4.4
million, or 10%, from 2011. The increased Clavestom infusion set and oncology sales were primaitlg to increased unit sales. The
decrease in critical care sales was primarily finoneased competition that resulted in lower aversajes prices and lower unit sales on ce
items.

International sales: Net international sales in 2012 were $79.9 milliommpared to net international sales of $77.7 amlin 2011, an
increase of 3%. Infusion therapy sales increase@ B8lion, or 12%, from 2011, which was primarflpm a $3.4 million increase in custom
infusion set sales and a $1.6 million increaselav€ product sales. Oncology sales increased $illidnmor 8%, from 2011. Critical care sal
decreased by $1.4 million, or 9%, from 2011. Ofhreduct sales decreased by $2.6 million, or 39&mf2011. The increases in infusion
therapy and oncology were from increased unit dades increased market share and demographic grovad decrease in critical care sales
was primarily due to increased competition anddbeine of the Euro to U.S. dollar. The decreasgtlieer product sales was primarily from
sale of the Orbit diabetes product line in 2011.

Geographically, our 2012 international sales wemaarily in Europe, the Pacific Rim, Latin Americd@anada and Africa. Sales in the
Pacific Rim, Canada and Africa increased by $5aniand were offset by $3.3 million in lower Ey@an sales. The lower European sales i
2012 were impacted by a weak Euro. Our 2012 iatevnal sales were negatively impacted by approteins3.6 million due to the decrease
in the average exchange rate of the Euro to theddlfar compared to 2011.

Sales by market segment and other revenue: Net infusion therapy sales were $215.3 millio2@12, an increase of $16.4 million, or
8%, from 2011. The increase from 2011 was primdrdyn $7.0 million in increased Clave product saad $9.0 million in increased custom
infusion set sales. The increase in Clave prodalessvas primarily from higher domestic sales tthihdospira and other domestic customers.
Custom infusion set sales increased in all charfrets higher unit sales.

Net critical care sales were $55.5 million in 20a2lecrease of $5.9 million, or 10%, from 2011e Tecrease was primarily due to
lower domestic sales from increased competition.ekfeerienced lower unit sales in certain produnts@ecreased our domestic critical care
prices in the middle of 2011 to retain existingtousers and attract new customers.

Net oncology sales were $30.3 million in 2012, rreréase of $5.9 million, or 24%, from 2011. Thedase was from higher sales in
all channels. The increased sales was from inclemseket share and demographic growth.

Other product sales were $15.3 million, a decre&$4..6 million, or 10%, from 2011. The largest trdsutor to this change from 20
was $2.1 million in lower Orbit sales, a produatlithat we sold in 2011, partially offset by $1.#Hion in higher Tego sales.

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andmegeshare income and was approximately $0.5 miliidz012 and $0.6 million in
2011.

Gross marginsfor 2012 and 2011 were 49% and 47%, respectiv@iyt favorable product mix contributed to approxieiabne
percentage point of the gross margin increase.ahl@exchange rates on the Mexican Peso contdtiatapproximately one-half of a
percentage point of the gross margin increase r@imaining increase in the gross margin was dudaitt pfficiencies.

SG&A were $84.6 million, or 27%, of revenues in 2012npared with $85.3 million, or 28%, of revenues @12. SG&A expenses
for 2011 include one-time expenses for the LongiTRetention Plan ("LTRP") of $2.0 million and compation expense related to the sale c
our Orbit diabetes infusion set product line ofgbtillion. Our stock compensation expense incre&ded million, promotion costs increased
$0.7 million, sales and marketing compensationksertefits increased $0.5 million and informatiorhteglogy ("IT") outside services and
consulting costs increased by $1.1 million. Oualezxpenses decreased $0.8 million. In January,20riCompensation Committee approved
the pay out of the 2005 LTRP grants, determinatbtanake any future payments for the 2006 and 20@atds, and determined that no
additional awards would be made under the LTRRérftiture, thus effectively cancelling the planeThcrease in sales and marketing
compensation and benefits is primarily the restthe expansion of our sales and marketing workf@ed compensation increases. The
decrease in legal expenses is due to lower lega ¢or patent litigation.

R&D were $10.6 million, or 3%, of revenue in 2012 corapato $8.6 million, or 3%, of revenue in 2011.eThcrease in R&D
expenses was primarily from $1.7 million of higlpeoject related R&D expenses supporting our infasio
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therapy, critical care and oncology market segmants$0.6 million in increased compensation ancfiesnfrom an expanded workforce,
partially offset by the $0.3 million one-time experfor the LTRP payout in 2011.

Legal settlement income of $2.5 million was received in 2011 and recordedperating expenses. The payment was the resalt of
settlement of litigation against a law firm thatrfeerly represented us in patent litigation.

Gain on sale of assets of $14.2 million in 2011 resulted from the saleasBets of our Orbit diabetes infusion set prodoet We sold
this product line because it was one of our snialiem-core product lines and the sale allows dsdas our operations on our key markets.

Other income was $0.6 million in 2012 compared to $1.2 million2011. The decrease is primarily due to lowegrggt income and
small loss on disposal of assets in 2012 verswsraan disposal of assets in 2011.

Income taxes were accrued at an estimated annual effectiveatizxaf 33.2% in 2012 compared to 32.7% in 2011e fHte differed
from the statutory corporate rate of 35% principakcause of the effect of foreign and state inctares, tax credits and deductions for
domestic production activities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During 2013, our cash, cash equivalents and imest securities increased by $70.7 million from&22million at December 31,
2012 to $296.9 million at December 31, 2013 .

Operating Activities : Our cash provided by operating activities tendsitoease over time because of our positive opeyaiaults.
However, it is subject to fluctuations, principaftpm changes in net income, accounts receivaientories and the timing of tax payments.

Our cash provided by operations was $65.7 millio8313 . Net income plus adjustments for non-ca&tlerpenses contributed $68.9
million to cash provided by operations and wasiakytoffset by a $3.2 million change in operatiagsets and liabilities. The $6.4 million
increase in income taxes, including excess taxflisrand deferred income taxes and $3.6 milliorréase in accounts receivable were the
largest changes in operating assets and liabilifies increase in income taxes is primarily duth&timing of tax payments and excess tax
benefits. The decrease in accounts receivabldnsaply due to lower revenue in the fourth quadéf013 compared to the fourth quarter of
2012.

Investing Activities: Our cash used by investing activities was $13lfianiin 2013 , which was primarily comprised of&2 million
in capital purchases offset by net investment sali&§.3 million . Our property, plant and equiprhparchases were primarily comprised of
machinery, equipment and mold additions in our &thibtates plant and machinery and equipment iMewico plant.

While we can provide no assurances, we estimatethacapital expenditures in 2014 will approximdfie.0 million to $24.0 million.
At our Salt Lake City, Utah plant, we expect to gate the conversion of existing warehouse spaoenranufacturing space and a new clean
room by the second half of 2014. We also anticipaé&ing investments in molds, machinery and equigrmeour manufacturing operations in
the United States and Mexico to support new anstiexj products and in IT that benefit world-widesogitions. We expect to use our cash an
investments to fund our capital purchases. Amoahspending are estimates and actual spendingsoiastantially differ from those amounts.

Financing Activities: Our cash provided by financing activities was $2#ilion in 2013 . Cash provided by the exercisestoick
options and shares purchased by our employees thmlemployee stock purchase plan was $20.5 milltesulting in 766,728hares issued
our employees and directors. The tax benefits sbare awards was $7.0 million in 2013 , whichtfhates based principally on when
employees choose to exercise their vested stoddngptin 2013 , we withheld 43,188 shares of oummmn stock from employee option
exercises and vested restricted stock units asdemasion for making $3.0 million in payments foetemployee's share award tax withholding
obligations.

In July 2010, our Board of Directors approved a séare purchase plan to purchase up to $40.0 miiawur common stock. We
have purchased $11.9 million of our stock from fiian, leaving a balance of $28.1 million availatsiefuture purchases. This plan has no
expiration date. We did not purchase any of ourroom stock in 2013.

We have a substantial cash and investment seqa#iyion generated from profitable operations andlssales, principally from the
exercise of employee stock options. We maintampbsition to fund our growth, meet increasing
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working capital requirements, fund capital expemdis, buy back our common stock on an opporturlistiis and to take advantage of
acquisition opportunities that may arise. Our priyninvestment goal is capital preservation.

As of December 31, 2013, we have $23.4 milliocagh and cash equivalents held outside of the dSitates, the majority of which
is available to fund foreign operations and obliyz.

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalemtsinvestment securities along with funds expgkttiebe generated from future
operations will provide us with sufficient fundsftoance our current operations for the next twehanths. In the event that we experience
illiquidity in our investment securities, downturascyclical fluctuations in our business that mr@re severe or longer than anticipated or if we
fail to achieve anticipated revenue and expensgldewe may need to obtain or seek alternativecesuof capital or financing, and we can
provide no assurances that the terms of such tapifmancing will be available to us on favorabéems, if at all.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are summarireNote 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemettgreparing our financial
statements, we make estimates and assumptiorsftbett the expected amounts of assets and liasilaind disclosure of contingent assets an
liabilities. We apply our accounting policies oea@nsistent basis. As circumstances change, thegoasidered in our estimates and judgment:
and future changes in circumstances could resghamges in amounts at which assets and liabiltiesecorded.

Investment securitiesinvestment securities consist of certificates qfatéts, corporate bonds and tax-exempt state amicipal
government debt which are classified as availabteséle. See Iltem 7A, Quantitative and Qualitabgclosures about Market Risk. Under
our current investment policies, our availabledale securities have no significant difference lketwthe fair value and amortized cost. If tl
were to be a significant difference, this amountigde reflected as a separate component of stéadisd equity. Unrealized gains and losses
on items for which the fair value option has beletted are reported in earnings at each subsegeemting date.

Revenue recognition We record sales and related costs when ownea$hiie product transfers to the customer, persaasiidence
of an arrangement exists, collectability is readbnassured and the sales price is determinabldetthe terms of all our purchase orders,
ownership transfers on shipment. If there are Sigmit doubts at the time of shipment as to théectdbility of the receivable, we defer
recognition of the sale in revenue until the reable is collected. Our customers are medical proghanufacturers, distributors and end-users
Our only post-sale obligations are warranty andbierrebates. We warrant products against defextave a policy permitting the return of
defective products. We accrue for warranty and pebdeturns based on historical experience. Weuaoabates as a reduction in revenue
based on agreements and historical experience.

Accounts receivable Accounts receivable are stated at net realizadillee. An allowance is provided for estimated edtion losses
based on the age of the receivable or on spea#tgue accounts for which we consider collectiobe doubtful. We rely on prior payment
trends, financial status and other factors to estnthe cash which ultimately will be received. lisamounts cannot be known with certainty at
the financial statement date. We regularly reviedividual past due balances for collectability. s @xposure is principally with international
customers for whom normal payment terms are lorgpimparison to those of our other customers anal Jégser extent, domestic distributors.
Many of these distributors are relatively small avelare vulnerable to adverse developments in tinesses that can hinder our collection
of amounts due. If actual collection losses exaegubctations, we could be required to accrue auditibad debt expense, which could hav
adverse effect on our operating results in theopdn which the accrual occurs.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cossf(fin, first out) or market. We need to carry maoyponents to
accommodate our rapid product delivery, and if we-estimate demand or if customer requirementsgdane may have components in
inventory that we may not be able to use. Mossfird products are made only after we receive omdept for certain standard (non-custom)
products which we will carry in inventory in expation of future orders. For finished products imentory, we need to estimate what may not
be saleable. We regularly review inventory andmeaséor slow moving items, and write off all itertiet we do not expect to use in
manufacturing, and finished products that we doexpiect to sell. If actual usage of componentsatssof finished goods inventory is less t
our estimates, we could be required to write offikoinal inventory, which could have an adverseefon our operating results in the period ir
which the write-off occurs.

Property and equipment/depreciatiorProperty and equipment is carried at cost apdetéated on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. The estimates of usefeldiare significant judgments in accounting for propand
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equipment, particularly for molds and automatea@ sy machines that are custom made for us. Werstag them on an accelerated basis if
we replace them with larger or more technologicatlyanced tooling. The remaining useful lives bpadbperty and equipment are reviewed
regularly and lives are adjusted or assets writfébased on current estimates of future use. Asqidhat review, property and equipment is
reviewed for other indicators of impairment. An ypected shortening of useful lives of property agdipment that significantly increases
depreciation provisions, or other circumstancesicauus to record an impairment loss on such gasatéd have an adverse effect on our
operating results in the period in which the relatbarges are recorded.

Income TaxesWe utilize the liability method of accounting farcome taxes as set forth in ASC 740. Under thditiamethod,
deferred taxes are determined based on the temypdiflarences between the financial statement andasis of assets and liabilities using tax
rates expected to be in effect during the yearghich the basis differences reverse. A valuatiéowaince is recorded when it is more likely
than not that some of the deferred tax assetqaflbe realized. In determining the need for vaduaallowances we consider projected future
taxable income and the availability of tax plann#ticategies. If in the future we determine thatwesild not be able to realize our recorded
deferred tax assets, an increase in the valualiowance would be recorded, decreasing earningiseiperiod in which such determination is
made.

We are subject to income taxes throughout the dr8tates and in numerous foreign jurisdictions.rédmgnize the financial
statement benefits for uncertain tax positionsed$asth in ASC 740 only if it is more-likely-thamet to be sustained in the event of challenges
by relevant taxing authorities based on the tecimierit of each tax position. The amounts of utaéertax positions recognized are the larges
benefits that have a greater than 50 percentli@ell of being realized upon settlement with thevaht tax authorities.

New Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statemiertss Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we have agreeuléonnify our officers and directors to the maximaxtent permitted under
Delaware law and to indemnify customers as to oemaellectual property matters related to saliesw products. There is no maximum limit
on the indemnification that may be required untleseé agreements. Although we can provide no assesawe have never incurred, nor do
we expect to incur, any liability for indemnificaii.

Contractual Obligations

We have contractual obligations, at December 3132®f approximately the amount set forth in thiglé below. This amount
excludes inventoryelated purchase orders for goods and servicesufoent delivery. The majority of our inventory phase orders are blan
purchase orders that represent an estimated for@fcgsods and services. We do not have a commitivadaility on the blanket purchase
orders. Since we do not have the ability to sepavat blanket purchase orders from non-blankethage orders for inventory-related goods
and services for current delivery, amounts rel&beslich purchase orders are excluded from the baibev. We have excluded from the table
below pursuant to ASC 740-10-25 (formerly FIN 4&),interpretation of ASC 740-10 (formerly SFAS 1G®hon-current income tax liability
of $4.4 million due to the high degree of unceriairegarding the timing of future cash outflowsasated with the liabilities.

Contractual Obligations Total 2014 2015 2016
Operating leases $ 524 $ 31C $ 151 $ 63
Warehouse service agreements 30z 303 — —
Purchase obligations 5,691 5,691 — —
$ 6,51¢ $ 6,302 $ 151 $ 63

Forward Looking Statements

Various portions of this Annual Report on Form 10ukcluding this Management'’s Discussion and Anialg$ Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, describe trends in osinkess and finances that we perceive and state ebour expectations and beliefs about ou
future. These statements about the future are domhiooking statements,” within the meaning of 8sc27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchaopef 1934, as
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amended, and we identify them by using words ssclaaticipate,

“could,

believe,” “expect,” “estimate,”ritend,” “plan,” “will,” “continue,”
may,” and by similar expressions and staents about aims, goals and plans. The forwatdrgstatements are based on the best

information currently available to us and assumpithat we believe are reasonable, but we do tendnthe statements to be representatio
to future results. They include, without limitatistatements about:

future growth; future operating results and @as elements of operating results, including fukkeenditures and effects with respect
to sales and marketing and product developmentaqdisition efforts; future sales and unit voluroéproducts; expected increases
and decreases in sales; deferred revenue; futemsk, royalty and revenue share income; productiets; gross margins; litigation
expense; future SG&A and R&D expenses; manufagueipenses; future costs of expanding our busimessne; losses; cash flow;
amortization; source of funds for capital purcheemes operations; future tax rates; alternative a@pf capital or financing; changes
in working capital items such as receivables anénitory; selling prices; and income taxes;

factors affecting operating results, such as shifs® specific customers; reduced dependence mentyproprietary products; loss
a strategic relationship; change in demand; domasiil international sales; expansion in internafiomarkets, selling prices; future
increases or decreases in sales of certain prodndts certain markets and distribution chanmelintaining strategic relationships
and securing long-term and multi-product contragth large healthcare providers and major buyirgpaizations; increases in
systems capabilities; introduction, development saids of new products; benefits of our productsr @empeting systems;
qualification of our new products for the expedigettion 510(k) clearance procedure; possibilitienfithier clearance process for
new products; planned increases in marketing; wérrelaims; rebates; product returns; bad debt es@eamortization expense;
inventory requirements; lives of property and equept; manufacturing efficiencies and cost saving#; manufacturing costs;
establishment or expansion of production facilitresde or outside of the U.S.; planned new ordl@rsemi-automated or fully
automated assembly machines for new products; adgaf production capacity; results of R&D; ournqdao repurchase shares of
our common stock; asset impairment losses; relmeati manufacturing facilities and personnel; effgfcexpansion of manufacturing
facilities on production efficiencies and resolatiaf production inefficiencies; the effect of cogiscustomers and delivery times;
business seasonality and fluctuations in quartesdylts; customer ordering patterns and the effgatew accounting
pronouncements; and

new or extended contracts with manufacturersharnyihg organizations; dependence on a small nuimbenstomers; loss of larger
distributors and the ability to locate other distitors; future sales to and revenues from Hospidatlae importance of Hospira to our
growth; effect of the current relationship with s, including its effect on future revenues and jpositioning with respect to new
product introductions and market share; growthwf@lave products in future years; design featofeSlave products; the outcome
our strategic initiatives; regulatory approvals aodhpliance; outcome of litigation; patent protestand intellectual property
landscape; patent infringement claims and the impkigewly issued patents on other medical devices)petitive and market factol
including continuing development of competing prodby other manufacturers; improved productiorcesses and higher volume
production; innovation requirements; consolidatidthe healthcare provider market and downwardsuneson selling prices;
distribution or financial capabilities of competio healthcare reform legislation; use of treastiogk; working capital requirements;
liquidity and realizable value of our investmentsgties; future investment alternatives; foreigmrency denominated financial
instruments; foreign exchange risk; commodity prisk; our expectations regarding liquidity and italpresources over the next
twelve months; capital expenditures; plans to caneeisting space; acquisitions of other businessgsoduct lines, indemnification
liabilities and contractual liabilities.

Forward looking statements involve certain riskd ancertainties, which may cause actual resultsfter materially from those discussed
in each such statement. First, one should con#i@diactors and risks described in the statentbetaselves or otherwise discussed herein.
Those factors are uncertain, and if one or mottéerh turn out differently than we currently expexir operating results may differ materially
from our current expectations.

Second, investors should read the forward looktatements in conjunction with the Risk Factors used in Item 1A of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Also, actual future operatiagults are subject to other important factorsrésic that we cannot predict or control,
including without limitation, the following:

general economic and business conditions, botheitUtS. and international
unexpected changes in our arrangements with Hospiwar other large custome
outcome of litigatior
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» fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and othsksrdf doing business internatione

* increases in labor costs or competition for skilleatkers

» increases in costs or availability of the raw miatemeed to manufacture our produ

» the effect of price and safety considerations enhiialthcare industi

e competitive factors, such as product innovationy technologies, marketing and distribution streraytld price erosio
e the successful development and marketing of newymnts

* unanticipated market shifts and tret

« the impact of legislation affecting government reursement of healthcare co

» changes by our major customers and independenibdistrs in their strategies that might affect trefforts to market our produc
» the effects of additional governmental regulati

e unanticipated production problems; .

» the availability of patent protection and the aofs¢nforcing and of defending patent clai

The forward looking statements in this report argject to additional risks and uncertainties, idahg those detailed from time to tir
in our other filings with the Securities and ExcgarCommission. These forward-looking statementsrag@e only as of the date hereof and,
except as required by law, we undertake no obbgatd update or revise any of them, whether asutref new information, future events or
otherwise.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk.
Financial Market Risk

We had a portfolio of government bonds, corporateds and certificates of deposit of $70.9 millienod December 31, 2013 . The
securities are all “investment grade,” comprise20.9 million of pre-refunded municipal securiti#4.1 million of non-pre-refunded
municipal securities, $45.7 million in corporatends and $3.2 million of certificates of depositeTprerefunded municipal securities are fu
escrowed by U.S. government Treasury bills with foarket risk.

Our future earnings are subject to potential ineeear decrease because of changes in short-tegreshtates. Generally, each one-
percentage point change in the interest rate waillse our overall yield to change by two-thirdshi@équarters of a percentage point, depen
upon the relative mix of our portfolio and markenditions specific to the securities in which wedsat. Two-thirds to three-quarters of a
percentage point change in our earnings on invegtsezurities would create a change of approxim&@l5 million to investment income
based on the average investment securities bafantee year ended December 31, 2013 .

Foreign Exchange Risk

We have foreign currency exchange risk relatedteifin-denominated cash, shtetm investments, accounts receivable and acc
payable. In our European operations, our net Essetgposition at December 31, 2013 was approxign&t&b.8 million . We also have
approximately € 39.2 million in Euro denominateditand investment accounts held by our corpordtyy.eA 10% change in the conversion
of the Euro to the U.S. dollar for our cash ancestments, accounts receivable, accounts payablacanded liabilities from the December 31,
2013 spot rate would impact our consolidated anmantthese balance sheet items by approximatelyrfillion , or 2.6% of these net
assets. We expect that in the future, with the ginavf our European distribution operation, thatBeto denominated instruments will continue
to increase. We currently do not hedge our foreigmency exposures.

Sales from the U.S. to foreign distributors areaeimated in U.S. dollars. We have manufacturintgssand distribution facilities in
several countries and we conduct business transaaienominated in various foreign currenciespaliin principally the Euro and Mexican
Peso. A 10% change in the conversion of the MexiRaso to the U.S. dollar from the average exchaaigeve experienced in 2013 and our
manufacturing spending from 2013 would have imphotgr cost of goods sold by approximately $2.4iomll.
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Commodity Risk

Our exposure to commodity price changes relatesapily to certain manufacturing operations that tesgn. We manage our expos
to changes in those prices through our procuremahisupply chain management practices and thet eff@cice changes has not been mats
to date. Based on our average price for resirsaafyear 2013 , a 10% increase to the pricesiingould have resulted in approximately a
$1.2 million change in material cost.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENIONALLY LEFT BL ANK]
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ICU Medical, Inc.
San Clemente, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiaries {thompany”) as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsmé&income, comprehensive income, stockhol@epsity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B.20ur audits also included the financial statetnsehedule listed in the index at Item
15. These consolidated financial statements arahfiial statement schedule are the responsibilith@fCompany's management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the otidated financial statements and financial statgmsehedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dmdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includeamining, on a test basis, evidence supportingtheunts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit alstuitles assessing the accounting principles usedignidicant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall &iimhstatement presentation. We believe that adita provide a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the results opésations and its cash flows for each of the tigeses in the period ended Decembel
2013, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of Americasojlin our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidinetdasic consolidated financial statements takemahole, present fairly, in all matel

respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited in accordance with the staisdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Baaidited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013, based on the criteria establishedarnal Control - Integrated
Framework(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway Commission and our repated February 21,

2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Cowlpanternal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 21, 2014
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 226,02: $ 146,90(
Investment securities 70,86¢ 79,25¢
Cash, cash equivalents and investment securities 296,89: 226,15¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfetounts of $1,208 and $998 at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively 45,31¢ 49,12°
Inventories 34,45 36,33
Prepaid income taxes 5,96¢ 2,32(
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,31¢ 7,271
Deferred income taxes 4,351 4,29:
Total current assets 394,29¢ 325,50
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 87,86 85,93’
GOODWILL 1,47¢ 1,47¢
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net 8,49( 9,95:
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 7,51¢ 5,64
$ 499,64: $ 428,51.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 11,33t $ 11,30¢
Accrued liabilities 15,55 17,81(
Total current liabilities 26,88¢ 29,11¢
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 3,63( 5,24
INCOME TAX LIABILITY 4,40z 3,29(
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — —
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Convertible preferred stock, $1.00 par value Auttesi—500 shares; Issued and outstanding— none — —
Common stock, $0.10 par value — Authorized—80,0d0res; Issued 15,103 shares at December {
2013 and 14,855 at December 31, 2012, outstandiri2 shares at December 31, 2013
and 14,458 shares at December 31, 2012 1,51(C 1,48¢
Additional paid-in capital 78,49¢ 63,77(
Treasury stock, at cost — 1 shares at Decembet(@1 and 397 shares at December 31, 2012 (49 (15,129
Retained earnings 382,57¢ 342,15¢
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) 2,19t (1,429
Total stockholders’ equity 464,72! 390,85
$ 499,64: $ 428,51.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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REVENUES:
Net sales
Other

ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

TOTAL REVENUE
COST OF GOODS SOLD

Gross profit

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Legal settlement
Gain on sale of assets
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
OTHER INCOME
Income before income taxes
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

NET INCOME

NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic
Diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

313,05¢ $ 316,32, $ 301,64
66C 547 552
313,71¢ 316,86¢ 302,19
158,98 160,35 159,84:
154,73 156,51 142,35
90,37¢ 84,60 85,28
12,407 10,63( 8,58¢
— — (2,500)
— — (14,24
102,78: 95,23 77,13
51,94 61,27¢ 65,22
76E 562 1,201
52,71 61,83 66,42:
(12,299 (20,55 (21,759
40,41¢ $ 41,287 $ 44,66
275 $ 290 $ 3.2¢
265 $ 2.8 $ 3.1¢
14,68¢ 14,22: 13,83
15,27+ 14,72 14,16
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 40,41¢ $ 41,28. $ 44,66¢
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of $8031%2&

$(578) for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2642
2011, respectively:

Foreign currency translation adjustment 3,62 1,80¢ (2,170
44,04( $ 43,08t $ 42,49¢

Comprehensive income $

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other
Paid-In Treasury Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Capital Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Total

Balance, December 31, 2010 13,65¢ 1,48¢ $ 56,50: $(41,42f $256,20¢ $ (1,069 $271,70«
Purchase of treasury stock (305) — — (11,959 — — (11,95¢)
Exercise of stock options, including excess
income tax benefits of $4,288 45¢ — (3,759 16,01t — — 12,26:
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 58 — (193) 2,021 — — 1,82¢
Stock compensation — — 4,01¢ — — — 4,01¢
Research and development tax credit originating
from stock options and other tax benefits 224 224
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — (2,170 (2,170
Net income — — — — 44,66¢ — 44,66¢

Balance, December 31, 2011 13,87. 1,48¢ 56,79¢ (35,34¢ 300,87 (3,239 320,57
Exercise of stock options, including excess
income tax benefits of $4,567 52€ — 1,34¢ 18,06 — — 19,41:
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 61 — 63 2,15i — — 2,22(
Stock compensation — — 5,56: — — — 5,56:
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — 1,80¢ 1,80t
Net income — — — — 41,28 — 41,28:

Balance, December 31, 2012 14,45¢ 1,48¢ 63,77(  (15,12¢ 342,15! (1,429 390,85
Issuance of restricted stock and exercise of stock
options, including excess income tax benefits of
$6,966 732 24 2,03( 22,91¢ — — 24,97(
Treasury stock acquired in lieu of cash payme
on stock option exercises and income tax
withholding obligations (140) — 6,67¢ (9,717 (3,039
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 51 — 58¢ 1,87¢ — — 2,457
Stock compensation — — 5,43¢ — — — 5,434
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — 3,622 3,622
Net income — — — — 40,41¢ — 40,41¢

Ba|ance, December 31, 2013 15,10: 1,51( $ 78,495 $ (49) $382,57‘ $ 2,19: $464,72!

The accompanying notes are an integral part afetltensolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 40,41¢ $ 41,28, $ 44,66¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 19,50¢ 19,00: 18,29
Provision for doubtful accounts 18t (237) 64¢
Provision for warranty and returns 671 22C —
Stock compensation 5,43¢ 5,56° 4,01¢
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment (36) 212 (42
Gain on sale of assets — — (14,249
Bond premium amortization 2,71F 2,58t 1,29¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 3,55¢ (5,395 6,23:
Inventories 2,31¢ 4,577 3,17(
Prepaid expenses and other assets (389) (41%) (920
Accounts payable (32) (1,536 2,67:
Accrued liabilities (2,215 1,19¢ 1,68¢
Deferred revenue — — (2549
Income taxes, including excess tax benefits andrdsd income taxes (6,413 (780) (2,735
Net cash provided by operating activities 65,72¢ 66,27 64,487
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (18,41YH (19,160) (15,829
Proceeds from sale of assets 49 10 16,20:
Proceeds from insurance — — 2,781
Intangible asset additions (1,080 (1,145 —
Purchases of investment securities (86,029 (98,87¢) (90,509
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 92,34¢ 77,79¢ 41,61(
Net cash used by investing activities (23,120 (41,379 (45,73
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 18,00¢ 14,84« 7,97¢
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 2,457 2,22( 1,82¢
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 6,96¢ 4,567 4,28¢
Purchase of treasury stock (3,039 — (11,95¢)
Net cash provided by financing activities 24,39¢ 21,63 2,13¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2,12 781 (147)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 79,12: 47,31( 20,74(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 146,90( 99,59( 78,85(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period $ 226,02. $ 146,900 $ 99,59(
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 12,17: $ 16,74: $ 20,11¢(
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Accrued liabilities for property and equipment $ 21z $ 427 $ 41¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share ancepshare data)

Note 1: General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

a. _Description of Business/Basis of Presentatio

ICU Medical, Inc., a Delaware corporation, operamesne business segment engaged in the developmantfacturing and sale of
innovative medical technologies used in infusiceréipy, oncology and critical care applications.r @avices are sold directly or to distributors
and medical product manufacturers throughout thigedrstates and internationally. The manufactuforgll product groups occurs in Salt
Lake City, Slovakia and Mexico. Assets and opegaéiRpenses are not allocated to individual produatips.

All subsidiaries are wholly owned and are inclu@tethe consolidated financial statements. Allintanpany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigave been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted
the United States of America.

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are investments with an origireunity of three months or less.

c. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizableevaAn allowance is provided for estimated cdilatlosses based on an assessmel
of various factors. We consider prior paymentderihe age of the accounts receivable balancesdial status and other factors to estimate
the cash which ultimately will be received. Suamoants cannot be known with certainty at the finalngtatement date. We regularly review
individual past due balances for collectability.

d. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtarkth cost determined using the first-in, firsttanethod. Inventory costs include
material, labor and overhead related to the matwurfiag of medical devices.

Inventories consist of the following at December 31

2013 2012
Raw material $ 21867 $ 20,80¢
Work in process 2,74¢ 3,01z
Finished goods 9,83¢ 12,51:
Total $ 34,45, $ 36,33:
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e. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the followingpatember 31.:

2013 2012
Machinery and equipment $ 84,317 $ 78,33
Land, building and building improvements 64,23¢ 61,52:
Molds 30,811 27,704
Computer equipment and software 21,62t 19,61
Furniture and fixtures 3,552 3,33¢
Construction in progress 8,45¢ 8,26¢
Total property and equipment, cost 213,00: 198,77:
Accumulated depreciation (125,141 (112,83f)
Net property and equipment $ 87,86 $ 85,93!

All property and equipment are stated at cost. Ud&ethe straight-line method for depreciating priyp@nd equipment over their
estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives are

Buildings 15 - 30 years
Building improvements 15 years
Machinery and equipment 2 - 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and molds 2 - 5years
Computer equipment and software 3 - 5years

We capitalize expenditures that materially increthsdlife of the related assets; maintenance goaingare expensed as incurred. The
costs and related accumulated depreciation appdi¢atproperty and equipment sold or retired aneaeed from the accounts and any gain or
loss is reflected in the statements of income atithe of disposal. Depreciation expense was $ifllion , $16.4 million and $15.6 million in
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2@&pectively.

The cost of property and equipment are presentedfig@vernment incentive reimbursements we recefv@m the Slovakian
government for building a manufacturing plant ieittcountry. Government incentives recorded in prgpand equipment were $3.7 million at
December 31, 2013 and $3.5 million December 312201
f. Goodwill

We test goodwill for impairment on an annual basithe month of November. If the carrying amoungobdwill exceeds the implied

estimated fair value, an impairment charge to curoperations is recorded to reduce the carryihigevio the implied estimated fair value.
There were no goodwill additions or impairment ¢fearin the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 .

g. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, carried at cost less accumudatextization and amortized on a straight-linedd)agere as follows:

Weighted
Average December 31, 2013
Amortization Accumulated
Life in Years Cost Amortization Net
Patents 9 $ 11,367 $ 6,38¢ $ 4,97¢
MCDA contract * 10 8,571 7,42¢ 1,14:
Customer contracts 9 5,31¢ 2,95( 2,36¢
Trademarks 4 42t 42t —
Total $ 25,68 $ 17,19: $ 8,49(
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Weighted
Average December 31, 2012
Amortization Accumulated
Life in Years Cost Amortization Net
Patents 9 $ 10,287 $ 535( $ 4,93’
MCDA contract * 10 8,571 6,571 2,00(¢
Customer contracts 9 5,31¢ 2,31 3,00z
Trademarks 4 42t 412 13
Total $ 24,60: $ 14,65( $ 9,957

*MCDA contract: Manufacturing, CommercializationdaDevelopment Agreement with Hospira, Inc. (“Hoa})i, dated May 1, 2005
(the "MCDA").

Amortization expense in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was sfllion , $2.6 million and $2.7 million , respgeely. Estimated annual
amortization for each of the next five years isragpnately $2.4 million for 2014 , $1.7 million f&015 , $1.1 million for 2016 , $1.0 million
for 2017 and $0.9 million for 2018 .

h. LoneglLived Assets

We periodically evaluate the recoverability of leinged assets whenever events and changes in citamees indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be fully recoverableeihdicators of impairment are present, the cagyialues of the assets are evaluated in
relation to the operating performance and futurdisoounted cash flows of the underlying businesg et book value of the underlying asset
is adjusted to fair value if the sum of the expdatescounted cash flows is less than book valuie viédues are based on estimates of market
prices and assumptions concerning the amount emidgtiof estimated future cash flows and discout@siareflecting varying degrees of
perceived risk.

i Investment Securities

Our investment securities, which are carried atrfarket value and are considered available-fag;gainsist principally of certificates
of deposits, corporate bonds and tax-exempt stateraunicipal government debt. Available-for-salews#ies are recorded at fair value, and
unrealized holding gains and losses are recordedyfriax, as a component of accumulated other cengmsive income. Unrealized losses on
available-for-sale securities are charged agaigistarnings when a decline in fair value is deteedito be other than temporary. Our
management reviews several factors to determing¢heha loss is other than temporary, such as tiggtheand extent of the fair value decline,
the financial condition and near term prospecthefissuer, and for equity investments, our ingemat ability to hold the security for a period of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoyén fair value. For debt securities, managemdst avaluates whether we have the intent to
sell or will likely be required to sell before asticipated recovery. Realized gains and lossea@munted for on the specific identification
method.

J- Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are determined based on the diffesebetween the financial statements and the teshasing rates as enacted in the
laws. A valuation allowance is established if itrisore likely than not” that all or a portion ofdtdeferred tax assets will not be realized.

We recognize interest and penalties related tocogrézed tax benefits in the tax provision. We mgtpe liabilities for uncertain tax
positions when it is more likely than not that & p@sition will not be sustained upon examinatiad aettlement with various taxing authorit
Liabilities for uncertain tax positions are measubased upon the largest amount of benefit thgiteiater than 50% likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. We have not recordednaaitgrial interest or penalties during any of thargepresented.

The deduction we receive from indirect tax bendfiten the exercise of stock options, such as thesegnized for research and

development credits and domestic production a@#ideductions, is recorded as a reduction toak@rovision. The direct tax benefits of
share based compensation are recorded througlicaddiipaid-in capital.
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K. Foreign Currency

We have operations in Europe where the functionakacy is the Euro. Assets and liabilities aredfated to U.S. dollars at the exchange
rate in effect at the balance sheet date and regesud expenses are translated at the averagelynexthange rates during the year.
Translation adjustments are recorded as a compofi@etumulated other comprehensive income, a aspaomponent of stockholders' eqt
on our consolidated balance sheets and the effestobange rate changes on cash and cash equi/akenteflected on our consolidated
statements of cash flows. Gains and losses fosd@ions denominated in a currency other thanuhetional currency of the entity are
included in our statements of operations. Foreigmnency transaction gains and losses were lesshbidmmillion in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 .

l. Revenue Recognition

All of our product sales are FOB shipping point amehership of the product transfers to the custooneshipment. We record sales
and related costs when ownership of the produnsteas to the customer, persuasive evidence ofrangement exists, collectability is
reasonably assured and the sales price is detdst@in®ur customers are distributors, medical pcbduanufacturers and end-users. Our only
post-sale obligations are warranty and certaintesbaWe warrant products against defects and agadicy permitting the return of defective
products. We reserve for warranty and returnsdasehistorical experience. We accrue rebates basedjreements and on historical
experience as a reduction in revenue at the tinsalet

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andmegesharing payments. Payments expected to beedcae estimated and recorded

in the period earned, and adjusted to actual amsaunén reports are received from payers; if thefedufficient data to make such estimates,
payments are not recorded until reported by thersay

m. Shipping Costs
Costs to ship finished goods to our customersraieded in cost of goods sold on the consolidatagsents of income.

n. Advertising Expenses

Advertising expenses are expensed as incurrededledted in selling, general and administrativeesges in our statements of incc
and were $0.3 million in 2013 , $0.2 million in 20&and $0.1 million in 2011 .

0. Postretirement and Posimployment Benefits

We do not provide retirement or post-employmengtfiento employees other than our Section 401 (fjer@ent plan for employees.
Our contributions to the plan were approximatelyl$illion in 2013, $1.3 million in 2012 and $Inflllion in 2011 .

p. Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed a®adhcu

g. Net Income Per Share

Net income per share is computed by dividing nebine by the weighted average number of common sluatstanding. Diluted net
income per share is computed by dividing net incbméhe weighted average number of common shartssamdling plus dilutive securities.
Dilutive securities are outstanding common stockams (excluding stock options with an exercise@iin excess of the average market value
for the period), less the number of shares thalddoave been purchased with the proceeds fromxbeeise of the options, using the treasury
stock method. Options that are anti-dilutive beeatlneir exercise price exceeded the average nyaiketof the common stock for the period
approximated 10,000 shares in 2013, 7,000 shar2@l2 and 217,000 shares in 2011 .
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The following table presents the calculation of eatnings per common share (“EPS”) — basic andedilu

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 40,41¢ $ 41,28: % 44,66¢
Weighted average number of common shares outsigllasic) 14,68t 14,22 13,83t
Dilutive securities 58€ 502 32¢
Weighted average common and common equivalentshartstanding (diluted) 15,27: 14,72t 14,16:
EPS - basic $ 275 % 29C % 3.2¢
EPS - diluted $ 265 % 28C $ 3.1t

r. Accounting Estimates

Preparing financial statements in conformity witngrally accepted accounting principles requiresagament to make estimates i
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesx@etises during the reporting period. Actualltesould differ from those estimates.

s. _New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardafq"FASB") issued Accounting Standards UpdateS{UA) number 2013-11,
Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Urgeized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carwyérd, a Similar Tax Loss, or a
Tax Credit Carryforward Exists — a consensus offR&B Emerging Issues Task Force. ASU 2013-11 gdigerequires, with some
exceptions, an entity to present its unrecogniagdenefits as it relates to its net operating t@ssyforwards, similar tax losses, or tax credit
carryforwards, as a reduction of deferred tax assben settlement in this regard is available utitetax law of the applicable taxing
jurisdiction as of the balance sheet reporting .détés effective prospectively for fiscal yeaesid interim periods within those years, beginr
after December 15, 2013. Retrospective applicatigermitted. We do not anticipate a material imarcour financial position, results of
operations or cash flows as a result of this change

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU numbéi3202, Other Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Remgpof Amounts Reclassified
Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income torave the reporting of reclassifications out oflanalated other comprehensive
income. ASU 2013-02 requires reporting the effédignificant reclassifications out of accumulatger comprehensive income on the
respective line items in net income. It is effeetpwospectively for fiscal years, and interim pdsiavithin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2012. The adoption of this ASU didaffect our 2013 consolidated financial statemdmi$,could require additional disclosure
if applicable in future periods.

Note 2: Share Based Awards

We have a stock incentive plan for employees argtttirs and an employee stock purchase plan. Stabe issued under these
plans will be issued either from authorized butssned shares or from treasury shares.

We incur stock compensation expense for stock pgtimestricted stock units ("RSU"), performancérieted stock units ("PRSU")
and stock purchased under our employee stock psggtlan ("ESPP"). We receive a tax benefit on steckpensation expense, excluding the
direct tax benefits from exercise of stock optiomkich is reported separately on the consolidatatments of cash flows. We also have
indirect tax benefits upon exercise of stock oicglated to research and development tax cretlilshwvere recorded as a reduction of inc
tax expense. The table below summarizes compensadsts and related tax benefits for the years@iicember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
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Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Stock compensation expense 5,43¢ 5,56: 4,01¢
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation cost 2,052 1,92 1,37¢
Indirect tax benefit 86¢€ 20¢ 78t

As of December 31, 2013, we had $6.6 million cimortized stock compensation cost which we wilbggéze as an expense over
approximately 1.1 years.

Stock Incentive and Stock Option Plans

Our 2011 Stock Incentive Plan ("2011 Plan") reptoar 2003 Stock Option Plan (“2003 Plan”). Our 2®1an initially had 650,000
shares available for issuance, plus the remainiagable shares for grant from the 2003 Plan. IbZ®ur stockholders approved an
amendment to the 2011 plan that increased theshaegdlable for issuance by 750,000, bringing il shares available for issuance to
1,400,000, plus the remaining 248,700 shares¢madined available for grant from the 2003 Plaraddition, any forfeited, terminated or
expired shares that would otherwise return to 9@32Plan are available under the 2011 Plan. Asexfenber 31, 2013, the 2011 Plan has
1,654,239 shares of common stock reserved fornesue employees, which includes 254,239 sharesrthasferred from the 2003 Plan.
Shares issued as options or stock appreciatiotsr{iBARs") are charged against the 2011 Plani®gkeaerve as one share for one share
issued. Shares subject to awards other than opinth§SARSs are charged against the 2011 Plan's sdseve as 2.09 shares for 1 share issue
Options may be granted with exercise prices atss than fair market value at date of grant. Optgmanted under the 2011 Plan may be “nor
statutory stock options” which expire no more tihemyears from date of grant or “incentive stockays” as defined in Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Upentise of non-statutory stock options, we are galyeentitled to a tax deduction on the
exercise of the option for an amount equal to teess over the exercise price of the fair marketevaf the shares at the date of exercise; we
are generally not entitled to any tax deductioritenexercise of an incentive stock option. The 2BtBh includes conditions whereby unvestec
options are cancelled if employment is terminated.

Our 2001 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “DirastdPlan”), initially had 750,000 shares reservedi§suance to members of our
Board of Directors, expired in November 2011. Aligh no new grants may be made under the Dire®tats grants made under the Direc
Plan prior to its expiration continue to remainstahding. Options not vested terminate if theadeship is terminated.

Stock Options

To date, all options granted under the 2011 Pl@@32lan and Directors' Plan have been non-stgtstock options. The majority of
the outstanding employee option grants vest 25& afie year from the grant date and the balands xa&sibly on a monthly basis over 36
months. The majority of the outstanding optiorenged to non-employee directors vest one year flengrant date. The options generally
expire 10 years from the grant date.

The fair value of option grants is calculated udimg Black-Scholes option valuation model. The ekpa term for the option grants
was based on historical experience, expected fetm@oyee behavior and the Staff Accounting Bullétl07 simplified method. We estimate
the volatility of our common stock at the date cdrgf based on the historical volatility of our conmrstock, based on the average expected
exercise term. The table below summarizes the stdak options granted, total valuation and thegivieid average assumptions for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 .
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Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Number of options granted 244,44( 228,32¢ 290,00(
Grant date fair value of options granted (in thowtsa $ 3,93: % 3,15¢ $ 4,09(
Weighted average assumptions for stock option Vialua

Expected term (years) 4.€ 4.7 5.C
Expected stock price volatility 29.2% 33.€% 34.5%
Risk-free interest rate 0.8% 0.7% 1.7%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%
Weighted average grant price per option $ 62.12 % 4712 % 43.27
Weighted average grant date fair value per option $ 16.0¢ $ 13.8: $ 14.1(

A summary of our stock option activity as of andttee year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Exercise Contractual Life Aggregate
Shares Price Per Share (Years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 2,444,75. $ 35.6¢
Granted 244.44( % 62.12
Exercised (715,779 $ 34.4¢
Forfeited or expired (21,290 $ 48.7¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,952,12. § 39.2¢ 51 % 47,78¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 1,392,417 % 35.1¢ 40 $ 39,72¢
Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2013 1,952,12. $ 39.2¢ 51 $ 47,78

The intrinsic value for options exercisable, outgiag and vested or expected to vest at Decemhe2?(@B is based on our closing
stock price of $63.71 at December 31, 2013 andbef@re applicable taxes.

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 21847 $ 12,21: % 11,45:
Cash received from exercise of stock options $ 18,00 $ 14,84 % 7,97¢
Tax benefit from stock option exercises $ 6,96¢€ $ 4567 $ 4,28¢

Stock Awards

In 2012, we began awarding PRSUs to our execuffigecs and RSUs to our Board of Directors. PRStésaavarded to our executive
officers to receive shares of common stock if theagurement period goal is met. The executive PR&&Jbased on a one-year market
condition performance period measured againstah sbreholder return metric ("TSR"). If the TSReiss than the 33rd percentile of our peer
group index, 0% of the award would be earned.dfTlSR is equal or greater than the 33rd percesmiteless than the 50th percentile of our
peer group companies, 50% of the award would beegaif the TSR is equal or greater than the 5etiegntile and less than the 75th
percentile of our peer group companies, 100% ohthard will be earned. If the TSR is equal or gege#ttan the 75th percentile of our peer
group companies, 200% of the award will be eariibég. PRSUs vest in equal yearly installments wite-titird of the grant becoming vested
on each of the three anniversary dates of the aw#e RSUs granted to our Board of Directors vesthe first anniversary of the grant date.
Our executive officers earned 0% of their 2013 aW@cause the TSR was below the 33rd percentidempeer companies. Our executive
officers earned 200% of their 2012 award becausd 8R was above the 75th percentile of our peepeaoiBs.

The fair value of the PRSUs is calculated usingantd Carlo simulation embedded in a lattice motleé 2013 calculation used a
risk-free interest rate of 0.15% , a closing sharee of $61.76 , assumed no dividends and assmméakfeitures. For the 2013 calculation, the
correlation matrix of stock price returns and wliteés were calculated based on one
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year preceding January 1, 2012. 2012 calculation used a risk-free interest rat@.©8% , a closing share price of $46.53 , assurmed n
dividends and assumed no forfeitures. For the 2@lculation, the correlation matrix of stock prie¢urns and volatilities were calculated
based on one year preceding January 1, 2012.

In 2013, our executive officers earned 0% of tRSBs granted, bringing their 2013 award to zer@Qh2 , our executive officers
earned 200% of the PRSUs granted, bringing thé RR&Us granted to 31,178 units.

The table below summarizes our restricted stock@wetivity for the years ended December 31, 20AGRL2 and 2011 .

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
PRSU
Shares granted 15,08t 15,58¢ —
Grant date fair value per share $ 50.8: $ 43.6( $ =
Grant date fair value $ 767 % 68C $ —
Intrinsic value vested $ 63€
RSU
Shares granted 4,90¢ 6,132 —
Grant date fair value per share $ 67.28 $ 53.8] $ =
Grant date fair value $ 33C % 33C $ —
Intrinsic value vested $ 412

The table below provides a summary of our PRSUR®BU activity as of and for the year ended Decer3tieP013 . The number of
units granted in 2012 are adjusted to reflect tREBs awards at 200% of their original amounts.

Weighted
Grant Date Average
Fair Value Per Contractual Aggregate
Number of Units Share Life (Years) Intrinsic Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 37,31C $ 45.2¢
Granted 19,99! $ 54.8¢
Vested (16,526 $ 47.3¢
Forfeited (15,08Y $ 50.8:
Non-vested and expected to vest at December i
2013 25,69: ¢ 48.12 0.5 $ 1,637
ESPP

We have an ESPP under which U.S. employees maphasgap to $25,000 annually of common stock at 8686 fair market value
at the beginning or the end of a six-month offeregiod, whichever is lower. There are 750,000 shaf common stock reserved for issuance
under the ESPP, which is subject to an annual aseref the least of 300,000 shares, two perceiieashares outstanding or such a number a
determined by the Board. To date, there have heancreases. As of December 31, 2013 , there 289905 shares available for future
issuance. The ESPP is intended to constitute apltgme stock purchase plan” within the meaningexdt®n 423 of the Internal Revenue
Code. As of December 31, 2013, we had less thahrlllion of unamortized stock compensation exggefinem the ESPP which will be
recognized in the first quarter of 2014 .

The fair value of rights to purchase shares untiee HSPP is calculated using the Black-Scholes mptiduation model. The table
below summarizes the number and intrinsic valuESPP share purchases and the weighted averagéiaalassumptions for the 2013 , 2012
and 2011 purchase periods.
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Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

ESPP shares purchased by employees 50,94+ 61,00« 57,64:
Intrinsic value of ESPP purchases (in thousands) $ 84C $ 91 ¢ 53C
Weighted average assumptions for ESPP valuation:

Expected term (in years) 0.t 0.t 0.t
Expected stock price volatility 24.%% 23.6% 26.(%
Risk-free interest rate 0.1% 0.1% 0.4%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%

Note 3: Fair Value Measurement

Our investment securities consist of certificatedaposit, corporate bonds and federal tax-exetapt nd municipal government
debt. All investment securities are consideredlabie-for-sale and are "investment grade", carried at fdirevand there have been no gain
losses on their disposal. As of December 31, 208 have $3.2 million of investment securities agél 1 assets, which are certificates of
deposit with quoted prices in active markets. ABecember 31, 2013 , we have $67.7 milladrinvestment securities as Level 2 assets, w
are pre-refunded municipal securities, non-prefr@édl municipal securities and corporate bonds and bbservable market based inputs suc
as quoted prices, interest rates and yield curves.

The following table provides the assets and litibgicarried at fair value measured on a recutvaeis.

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2013 using

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
Total carrying identical observable unobservable
value assets (level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)
Available for sale securities $ 70,86¢ $ 3,20 % 67,66: $ —
$ 70,86¢ $ 3,208 % 67,66: $ —

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2012 using

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
Total carrying identical observable unobservable
value assets (level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)
Available for sale securities $ 79,25¢ % 8,49C $ 70,76¢ $ —
$ 79,25¢ $ 8,49C $ 70,76¢ $ —

Note 4: Investment Securities

Our investment securities consist of certificatbdeposit, corporate bonds and federal-tax-exemape &nd municipal government
debt. All investment securities are consideredlabte-for-sale and are “investment gradegiried at fair value and there have been no ga
losses on their disposal. Unrealized gains angkksn available-for-sale securities, net of texjrcluded in accumulated other
comprehensive income in the stockholders' equityia® of our consolidated balance sheets. We hawgoss unrealized gains or losses on
available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2¥13)12 . Balances consist of the following at ®aber 31:

2013 2012

Federal tax-exempt debt securities $ 21,96¢ $ 23,73:
Corporate bonds 45,69¢ 47,03:
Certificates of deposit 3,20¢ 8,49(
$ 70,86¢ $ 79,25¢

The scheduled maturities of the debt securitiebateeen 2014 and 2040 and are all callable withimyear.
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Investment income consisted of the following foclegear:

2013 2012 2011
Corporate dividends $ 1 $ 4 3 15
Tax-exempt interest 55 74 10z
Other interest 34¢ 21¢ 35¢
$ 401 $ 297 % 47€
Note 5:  Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of the following at Devober 31:
2013 2012
Salaries and benefits $ 7527 $ 8,444
Incentive compensation 3,491 4,21(
Value Added Tax accrual 96( 1,064
Other 3,567 4,092
$ 15,55, $ 17,81(
Note 6: Income Taxes
Income from continuing operations before taxeglieryears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2Gislfollows:
2013 2012 2011
United States 48,96: $ 62,20 $ 63,57¢
Foreign 3,75( (365) 2,847
52,71 $ 61,83¢ $ 66,42:
The provision (benefit) for income taxes for theggeended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ddlew$:
2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal 14,57 $ 21,07 $ 19,24¢
State 2,14t 2,08( 1,24¢
Foreign (70 67¢ 78t
16,65( 23,83( 21,27:
Deferred:
Federal 164 $ (2,27¢) $ 16¢
State (99¢) (79¢€) 32¢
Foreign (3,529) (200) (29
(4,359 (3,279 47€
12,29¢ $ 20,55¢ % 21,75

Current income taxes payable were reduced fronani@unts in the above table by $7.0 million , $4ilion and $4.3 million in
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, equal to tfexztdtax benefit that we receive upon exercisstok options by employees and directors.
That benefit is allocated to stockholders’ equitie have accrued for tax contingencies for potetdiabssessments, and in 208 recognize
a $1.3 million net decrease of accruals most ottvihélates to various federal, state and foreigneaerves.

Reconciliations of the provision for income taxéshe statutory rate to our effective tax ratetfer years ended December 31, 2013 ,
2012 and 2011 are as follows:
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Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Federal tax at the expected statutory rate $  18,45( 35.(% $ 21,64« 35.(% $ 23,24 35.C%
State income tax, net of federal effect 1,12¢ 21% 1,35¢ 22% 1,46( 2.2%
Tax credits (1,979 (3.1% (1,465) (2.9% (2,179 (1.8%
Tax-exempt interest and dividends — — % (23 (0.1)% (45) (0.2)%
Domestic production activities/other (4093 (0.8% (1,559 (2.5)% (1,509 (2.39%
Foreign income tax (4,907) (9.9% 60& 1.C% (230 (0.9%

$ 12,29¢ 23.:% $ 20,55¢ 332% $ 21,75! 32.7%

Tax credits in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 consist pradtymof research and developmental tax creditse ifidirect effect of non-statutory
stock options exercised on research and developtaetedits and other tax credits were recordagdsctions of the effective tax provision.

The components of our deferred income tax provifioithe years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 @hil &re as follows:

2013 2012 2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 4 3 59 $ (24)
Inventory reserves 341 145 1,143
Accruals (470 (2,37%) (464)
State income taxes 552 177 @)
Acquired future tax deductions 40 50 29¢
Depreciation and amortization (3,850 (700 (205)
Tax credits (977) (50¢) (264)

$ (4,359 % (3,272 $ 47€
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The components of our deferred income tax assatslifies) at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are baws:

2013 2012
Current deferred tax assets:
State income taxes $ 29¢ % 437
Foreign 70€ 40C
Accruals/other 1,97: 1,881
Tax credits 27¢ 441
Allowance for doubtful accounts 14C 101
Inventory reserves 95¢ 1,247
Current deferred tax asset before valuatiamalhce $ 4,351 $ 4,507
Valuation allowance — (214
4,351 4,29:
Non-current deferred tax asset:
Foreign $ 1,33 % 98¢
Accruals/other 54€ 53¢
Depreciation and amortization (429 (45¢)
Tax credits state 6,062 4,927
Non-current deferred tax asset before valualmwance $ 751¢ $ 5,98¢
Valuation allowance $ — % (34¢€)
$ 7518 % 5,64z
Non-current deferred tax liability:
State income taxes $ (2,167 $ (1,75))
Foreign — (2,300
Accruals/other (186€) (18¢)
Depreciation and amortization (5,90€) (6,429
Acquired future tax deductions (610 (515
Stock-based compensation 5,68¢ 5,581
Foreign currency translation adjustments (449 354
$ (3,630 $ (5,247

Acquired future tax deductions are the tax benéfitkided in our consolidated income tax returriginating in Bio-Plexus, Inc., an
entity purchased in 2002, prior to when we acquiredentity. They consist of: (a) the net tax béradfitems expensed for financial statement
purposes but capitalized and amortized for tax @egp and (b) the tax benefited portion of Bio-Pé&xiNOL carry-forward which will be
realized in approximately equal amounts over the b8 years. Under Section 382 of the Internal ReeeCode, certain ownership changes
limit the utilization of the NOL carry-forwards, drihe amount of Bio-Plexus federal NOL carry-fordsarecorded is the net federal benefit
available.

We have tax credits that we expect to utilize itufe periods that may be carried forward indeflgit&€ ax benefits were recognized in
2013 for the 2012 federal research and developrergdits as a result of tax legislation enactedda3.

Our Mexican subsidiary recognized a one-time tanefieas a result of new tax legislation enacted0a3.

Foreign currency translation adjustments, andedl&ix effects, are an element of “other comprekeriscome” and are not included
in net income.

The realization of deferred tax assets is depemutegenerating sufficient foreign taxable incoméhia years that the temporary
difference becomes deductible. As of DecembeRB12, a valuation allowance related to a foreigrnidas carryforward had been provided
the past for the portion of the deferred tax asthetswe determined is more likely than not to remanrealized based on estimated future
taxable income and tax planning strategies. Aatadn allowance of $0.6 million was recorded agaitssgross deferred tax asset balance as |
December 31, 2012. Based on the results for thegreded December 31, 2013, sufficient taxable fgefkist and are estimated for future y:
resulting in a reversal of this valuation allowamseof December 31, 2013. The valuation allowas@eio as of December 31, 2013.
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Our estimate of undistributed earnings of our fonesubsidiaries for which no federal or state ligbhas been recorded cumulatively
totaled $13.9 million at December 31, 2013 and $13llion at December 31, 2012 . These undistedwarnings are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested. However, if unanticipatgigtribution of those earnings were to occur infthren of dividends or otherwise, some
portion of the distribution would be subject tolbédreign withholding taxes and U.S. income taxigsthe event that our position in this reg
changes, determining the potential amount of urgeized deferred federal and state income tax ltgtzihd foreign withholding taxes is not
practicable because of the complexities associatirits hypothetical calculation. However, unrenaged foreign tax credits would be
available to reduce some portion of the federailitz.

We are subject to taxation in the United Statesvamibus states and foreign jurisdictions. Our BaiStates federal income tax return:
for tax years since 2010 are subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Service. Our principaksitacome tax returns for tax years since
2004 are subject to examination by the state téxoaities. The total gross amount of unrecognizedbienefits as of December 31, 2013 was
$5.5 million that, if recognized, would impact thifective tax rate.

The following table summarizes our cumulative gnasgecognized tax benefits for 2013 , 2012 and 2011

2013 2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 423¢ $ 4,97¢ % 4,411
Increases (decreases) to prior year tax positions 391 15€ 494
Increases to current year tax positions 1,35:¢ 49C 764
Decrease related to settlements — (230 (392
Decrease related to lapse of statute of limitations (43€) (1,159 (299)
Ending balance $ 554/ $ 4236 $ 4,97¢

Note 7: Products, Major Customers and Concentratins of Credit Risks

Our primary product groups are infusion therapitioad care, oncology and other. The breakdown laykat segment for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are asvioll

2013 2012 2011
Infusion therapy $ 211,24¢ % 215,31¢ $ 198,88t
Critical Care 51,48 55,51¢ 61,40(
Oncology 37,50¢ 30,31: 24,41
Other 13,47¢ 15,75 17,49:
$ 313,71t % 316,900 $ 302,19!

We sell products worldwide, on credit terms on asacured basis, to medical product manufacturedspendent medical supply
distributors, and directly to the end customer. Wanufacturers and distributors, in turn, sell praducts to healthcare providers. For the yeat
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , we hddwide sales to one manufacturer, Hospira, of 39#% and 42% , respectively, of
consolidated revenue. As of December 31, 2018 2812 , we had accounts receivable from Hospi@2é6 and 35% , respectively, of
consolidated accounts receivable.

Domestic sales accounted for 71% , 75% and 74%talf tevenue in 2013 , 2012 and 2QX#&spectively. International sales, which

determined by the destination of the product shipeeccounted for 29% , 25% and 26% of total reeeini2013 , 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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The table below presents our long-lived assetsoopiry:

As of December 31,
2013 2012
Mexico $ 49,45¢ 47,46
Slovakia 18,42: 16,22«
Italy 5,42¢ 5,027
Germany 547 21z
Total foreign $ 73,85. $ 68,92+
United States 139,15( 129,84¢
Worldwide total $ 213,00: $ 198,77

Note 8: Operating Leases

We lease a building in Ludenscheid, Germany whiglires December 31, 2014 and have an option todxtes term. We also lease
various office equipment with expiration dates iaggro m 2014 to 2016 . Our lease expense waa idlion in 2013 , $0.2 million in 2012
and $0.2 million in 2011 . Our annual minimum fetlease payments are $0.5 million in 2014 , $0IRom in 2015 and $0.1 million in 2016 .

Note 9: Sale of Assets

Our management and Board of Directors made theidecio sell our Orbit diabetes infusion set prddine so that our operations
could focus on our core products in infusion thgramcology and critical care applications. Thesésswhich were comprised of $1.7 million
in intangible assets and $0.1 million in fixed asseere sold in November 2011 for $16.2 millioraatet gain of $14.2 millionThe net gain i
included as a credit in operating expenses on trsd@idated Statement of Income for the year efdlszbmber 31, 2011 .

Note 10: Legal Settlement

In February 2011, we reached a litigation settlenagainst a law firm that formerly representedrupatent litigation matters,
representing reimbursement of legal fees previopalg to the firm. Under the terms of the settlatnee received $2.5 million , which is
included as a credit in operating expenses on tmsdidated Statement of Income for the year efdisgember 31, 2011 .

Note 11: Exit Activity from Italy and Germany Facilities

In 2011, our new plant in Slovakia became our Eeappproduct distribution facility. Product asseyninleviously done in our Italy
and Germany facilities transferred to our Slovakant. As a result of this, we had terminationtsds certain manufacturing and operations
employees from our Italy facility. The productasbly transition from our Italy plant to the Slovalplant was completed in March 2011.
Italy facility continues to support sales in Euroféhe product assembly transition from our Germalayt to the Slovakia plant was comple
in the third quarter of 2011. Our Germany facigntinues to support a small amount of manufaafuttiat is not intended to be transferred to
the Slovakia plant at this time. In the year enBedember 31, 2011, we recorded $0.8 million in time- termination costs, $0.7 million in
cost of goods sold and $0.1 million in sales, gaha&nd administrative expense. There are no egiismbligations remaining at December 31,
2013 or 2012.
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Note 12: Treasury Stock

In July 2010, our Board of Directors approved a swn stock purchase plan to purchase up to $40l®mdf our common stock.
This plan has no expiration date and we have $28libn remaining on this purchase plan. We did regiurchase any of our common stock in
the year ended December 31, 2013. We expect tthageeasury stock to issue shares for stock omtkencises, restricted stock grants and
employee stock purchase plan stock purchases.

In 2013, we withheld 43,188 shares of our commounksfrom employee option exercises and vestedice=sdrstock units in
consideration for $3.0 million in payments for gmployee's share award income tax withholding etibgs. In 2013, we also withhe®®,927
shares of our common stock from option exerciséls ghiares remitted back to us in lieu of a casimgay for the option exercise.

Note 13: Stockholder Rights Plan

In July 1997, our Board of Directors adopted a Btotder Rights Plan. This plan expired in 2007 amduly 2007, our Board of
Directors adopted an Amended and Restated Rightsetgent. We distributed a Preferred Share PurdRige (a “Right”) for each share of
our Common Stock outstanding. The Rights geneweillynot be exercisable until a person or group haquired 15% or more of our Common
Stock in a transaction that is not approved in adeay the Board of Directors or ten days afterciir|amencement of a tender offer which
could result in a person or group owning 15% orerafrour Common Stock.

On exercise, each Right entitles the holder todng share of Common Stock at an exercise price2H $ In the event a third party
or group were to acquire 15% or more of our outlite;nCommon Stock without the prior approval of Bward of Directors, each Right will
entitle the holder, other than the acquirer, to @@ynmon Stock with a market value of twice the eiserprice, for the Right’s then current
exercise price. In addition, if we were to be acefliin a merger after such an acquisition, shddsns with unexercised Rights could purchast
common stock of the acquirer with a value of twttoe exercise price of the Rights.

Our Board of Directors may redeem the Rights foominal amount at any time prior to the tenth besinday following an event that
causes the Rights to become exercisable. The Rightexpire unless previously redeemed or exertisn August 8, 2017.

Note 14: Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, we are involved in various ottegral proceedings, most of which are routine ditign, in the normal course of
business. Our management does not believe thagsléution of the other legal proceedings thaaweeinvolved with will have a material
adverse impact on our financial position or resofteperations.

In the normal course of business, we have agreguléonnify our officers and directors to the maximaxtent permitted under
Delaware law and to indemnify customers as to oemaellectual property matters related to saliesw products. There is no maximum limit
on the indemnification that may be required untieseé agreements. We have never incurred, nor égaxpext to incur, any liability for
indemnification.

59




Table of Contents

Note 15: Quarterly Financial Data - Unaudited

2013

Total revenue

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

2012

Total revenue

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
74,29¢ 78,66. $ 82,81¢ 77,94:
36,79« 38,03¢ 40,95¢ 38,94¢

8,68¢ 7,367 11,03¢ 13,33
0.6C 05C $ 0.7¢ 0.8¢
0.5¢ 0.4¢ $ 0.7z 0.8¢

75,51 77,28. % 81,40¢ 82,67:
34,96¢ 39,08: 40,69t 41,76¢

7,601 9,14¢ 12,18¢ 12,34
0.54 0.6 $ 0.8t 0.8¢
0.5: 06 $ 0.82 0.82
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have concluded, based on their evadnadf our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Regulations 13a-15(e)lafd)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Actd®4) as of the end of the period covered
by this Report, that our disclosure controls aratpdures are effective to ensure that the infoonatie are required to disclose in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act isumeulated and communicated to our management,dimgwur principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, as appropriateattow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand that such information is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieniods specified in the rules and forms of theuiges Exchange Commission.

There was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting that occurred during our mosengdiscal quarter that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to miahy affect our internal control over financiaporting.

Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control over Finanélaborting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdabfy and maintaining adequate control over then@any’s financial reporting.

Management has used the criteridniternal Control — Integrated Framewo(k992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission to evaltia effectiveness of its internal control oveaficial reporting.

Management of the Company has concluded that thep@oy has maintained effective internal controlratgefinancial reporting as
of December 31, 2013 based on the criteriiarnal Control — Integrated Framewo(k992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Our independent registered public accounting finat tiudited the December 31, 2013 financial statésriacluded in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K has independently assesseeffibetiveness of our internal control over finaheéporting and its report is below.

61




Table of Contents
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ICU Medical, Inc.
San Clemente, CA

We have audited the internal control over finangglorting of ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiarigse(tCompany”) as of December 31,
2013, based on criteria establishethirernal Control - Integrated Framewo#992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camgs management is responsible for maintaininecétfe internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéiveness of internal control over financial oejing, included in the accompanying
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control dieancial Reporting. Our responsibility is to eegs an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@sir audit included obtaining an understandinght#rinal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etdsting and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on
the assessed risk, and performing such other puoes@s we considered necessary in the circumstaige believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemidi the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pErs performing similar functions, and effected by tompany's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakpassurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with accounting principles generally accepidtie United States of America
("generally accepted accounting principles"). Angany's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thakasonable detail, accurately and fairly w@fte transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable @asseithat transactions are recorded as necesgagynit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally acceptenbating principles and that receipts and expenelitof the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of managered directors of the company; and (3) providsoeable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the company's as#et could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltconover financial reporting, including the posti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventaedktected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that
the controls may become inadequate because of ekdmgonditions, or that the degree of compliamitle the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fingl reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on the criteria establishethtarnal Control - Integrated Framewo®#992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements and financiakstant schedule as of and for the year ended Demredibh 2013 of the Company and our

report dated February 21, 2014 expressed an ufigdabdpinion on those consolidated financial staata and financial statement
schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE, LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 21, 2014
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Item 9B.  Other Information.
None
PART llI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

The following table lists the names, ages, cenpaisitions and offices held by our executive officas of February 13, 2014 .

Age Office Held
Vivek Jain 41 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Alison D. Burcar 41 Vice President of Product Development
Richard A. Costello 50 Vice President of Sales
Scott E. Lamb 51 Chief Financial Officer
Steven C. Riggs 55 Vice President of Operations

Mr. Jain joined the company on February 13, 2014 as Chaiwh#ime Board and Chief Executive Officer. Priojaming the
company, Mr. Jain served as CareFusion Corporat{t@areFusion”) President of Procedural SolutiomfAugust 2011 to February 2014.
From September 2009 until July 2011, Mr. Jain sgia® President, Medical Technologies and Servit€aeFusion. From July 2007 until
August 2009, Mr. Jain served as the Executive WoesidentStrategy and Corporate Development of Cardinal tHeR¥rior to joining Cardin:
Health, from May 2006 to August 2007 Mr. Jain seras Senior Vice President/Head of Healthcare &jyaBusiness Development and M
for the Philips Medical Systems business of Konjk&lPhilips Electronics N.V., an electronics compaMr. Jain was an investment banker a
J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., an investment bankimg from July 1994 to April 2006. His last pasit with J.P. Morgan was as Managing
Director/Co-Head of Global Healthcare InvestmentiBag from April 2002 to April 2006.

Ms. Burcarhas served as our Vice President of Product Dewsdop since July 2009. Ms. Burcar served as our Piasident of
Marketing from 2002 to July 2009, our Marketing @@sns Manager from 1998 to 2002 and held reseandhdevelopment project/program
management positions from 1995 to 1998.

Mr. Costellohas served as our Vice President of Sales since. M9 Costello served as our National Sales Man&igen 1996 to
1997 and as a Product Specialist from 1992 to 1996.

Mr. Lambhas served as our Chief Financial Officer sincerfraty 2008. Mr. Lamb served as our Controller frapril 2003 to
February 2008. Mr. Lamb served as Senior Diregtdtinance for Vitalcom, Inc. from June 2000 to ®aR003.

Mr. Riggshas served as our as Vice President of Operattons 2002 to October 2013 and resumed this positidtebruary 2014.
Mr. Riggs served as Acting Chief Executive Offifemm October 2013 to February 2014. Mr Riggs sea®dur Director of Operations from
1998 to 2002 and as our Senior Manager of Qualiyutance and Quality Control from 1992 to 1998.

The information required by this item about our Bbaf Directors, audit committee, including the awdmmittee’s financial expert,
and disclosure of Forms 3, 4 or 5 delinquent filerset forth under the captiok$ection of Directors Audit CommitteeandCompliance with
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coaralein our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed imoection with our 2014 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, and such information oitporated herein by reference.

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethicsifec®rs and Officers. A copy is available on owbsite, www.icumed.com. We
will disclose any future amendments to, or waifess, the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics foeddors and Officers on our website.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is set fouthider the captiofExecutive Officer and Director Compensatiddompensation
CommitteeandCompensation Committee Interlocks and Insider grditionin our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed imoection with
our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and saébrimation is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet

The information required by this item is set foutider the captioBecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagement
in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed imoection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockhafdeand such information is incorporated
herein by reference.

We have a 2011 Stock Incentive Plan under whiclmarg grant restricted stock or options to purchasecommon stock to
our employees, directors and consultants. We 2@Da DirectorsStock Option Plan under which we granted optionsuichase our commc
stock to our directors, which plan expired in Now®mn2011. We also had a 1993 Stock Incentive Fidrea2003 Stock Option Plan, under
which we granted options to purchase common swtkea employees, which plans expired in Januanp 200 May 2011, respectively. We
also have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Aisphgere approved by our stockholders. Furtherimé&ion about the plans is in Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Certamrinition about the plans at December 31, 2013s fsllows:

Number of shares remaining

Number of shares to be issued upon Weighted-average exercise available for future issuance under
exercise of outstanding options, price of outstanding equity compensation plans
warrants and rights options, warrants and rights (excluding shares reflected in column (a))
@ (b) (c)
1,952,12. $ 39.2¢ 1,285,32.

*As of December 31, 2013 , there were 269,905 shafreommon stock available for issuance undetEmaployee Stock Purchase Plan, which are includéisramount.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is set fouthider the captiofiransactions with Related PersoriRolicies and Procedures
Regarding Transactions with Related PersandDirector Independenci our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed imoection with our
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and such mi&tion is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is set foutider the captioBelection of Auditors our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed in
connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockteak, and such information is incorporated hergirelference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Scheduge

(@)

(b)

()

The following documents are filed as partho$ report:
The financial statements listed below are sehfim Item 8 of this Annual Report.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2L 3Gi?
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare&mkcember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomtéoYears Ended December 31013, 2012 and
2011

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytlierYears Ended December 31013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEnded December 312013, 2012 and 2011
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Exhibits

Financial Statement Schedules

The Financial Statement Schedules required fddukas a part of this Report are:
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Exhibits required to be filed as part of thigpBe are:

Form 10-K Page No.

39
40
41

42
43
44
45

68

69

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Registrant's Certificate of Incorporation, as aneshd1)
3.2 Registrant's Bylaws, as amended and restated. (19)
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directorsdaxecutive Officers. (18)
10.2 Registrant's Amended and Restated 1993 IncentaekRlan. (2)*
Manufacture and Supply Agreement dated Septemhekr9B8 between Registrant and B. Braun, Inc. rejatd the Protected
10.3 Needle product. (3)
Supply and Distribution Agreement dated April 39%3%etween Registrant and Abbott Laboratories, rielating to the Clave
10.4 product. (4)
Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated Oct@&@007 between Registrant and American Stocksfea & Trust
10.5 Company as Rights Agent. (14)
10.6 SafelLine Agreement effective October 1, 1997 by laetsheen Registrant and B. Braun Medical, Inc. (5)
Amendment to April 3, 1995 Supply and Distributidgreement, dated January 1, 1999, between RedistnahAbbott
10.7 Laboratories. (6)
10.8 Co-Promotion and Distribution Agreement, dated Baby 27, 2001 between Registrant and Abbott Labdes. (7)
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10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Registrant's 2001 Directors' Stock Option Plart: (8)
Registrant's 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (8)
Registrant's 2003 Stock Option Plan. (9)*

Amendment to April 3, 1995 Supply and Distributidgreement, dated as of January 14, 2004, betwegistRant and Abbott
Laboratories. (10)

Amendment to February 27, 2001 Co-Promotion anttibigion Agreement, dated as of January 14, 288#veen Registrant
and Abbott Laboratories. (10)

Manufacturing, Commercialization and Developmente®ggnent between Registrant and Hospira, Inc. @ffedlay 1, 2005. (11)
Employment Agreement between Registrant and Gedrgepez, M.D. effective January 1, 2011. (22)*

Letter Agreement dated July 8, 2005 between Regisand Hospira, Inc. re: Manufacturing, Commeizédion and
Development Agreement effective May 1, 2005. (12)

Settlement and Release Agreement dated as of Jahu2007 between ICU Medical, Inc. and Fulwidett®talLee & Utecht,
LLP. (13)

Executive officer compensation.*

Non-employee director compensation.*

2008 Performance-Based Incentive Plan, as ame(2&d.

Amendment No. 1 to 2001 Directors' Stock OptiomP({46)*

Amendment No. 2 to 2001 Directors' Stock OptiomP({46)*

Amendment No. 3 to 2001 Directors' Stock OptiomP({46)*

Form of Executive Officer Retention Agreement. ¢17)

Amended and Restated Retention Agreement betwegistRent and Dr. George A. Lopez, dated Novemb@020. (20)*

Schedule identifying parties to agreements withRegistrant substantially identical to the FornEgecutive Officer Retention
Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.24 hereto. (21)*

Amendment 20 to the Supply and Distribution Agreeimeffective as of November 30, 2011, between Ni&dlical Sales, Inc.
and Hospira, Inc. (24)

Third Amendment to the Co-Promotion and Distribntigreement, effective as of November 30, 201lwbeh ICU Medical
Sales, Inc. and Hospira, Inc. (24)

ICU Medical, Inc. Amended 2011 Stock Incentive PI@38)*
Form of Executive Officer Retention Agreement -rTicEmployee. (25)*

Form of Executive Officer Retention Agreement -rlaecEmployee. (25)*

NAada Af DiicinAace Candiiat and Cthine fAar NivAantarkMAHfinAre (1K



21 Subsidiaries of Registrant.
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of tlalfaines-Oxley Act of 2002.

*Executive compensation plan or other arrangement

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin
Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Registraticst&nent Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-45734) fded
(1) February 14, 1992, and incorporated herein by eefes.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's definitive Br@&tatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on dat, 1999,
(2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended Septembet 393, and
3) incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended March 31, 1888
4) incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8-K filed June 18, 1998, and incorporatexkim by
(5) reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8K filed February 23, 1999, and incorporated hebsil
(6) reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8-K filed March 7, 2001, and incorporateddin by
(7 reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's definitive Br@&tatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A onilkfr2002,
(8) and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's definitive Br@&tatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A onil&2, 2003,
9 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparfForm 8-K dated January 15, 2004, and incorpdrageein by
(20) reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended March 31, 2608
(12) incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 30, 2808,
(12) incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Annual Reporform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, a
(13) incorporated herein by reference.



Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Registraticst&nent on Form 8/A dated October 18, 2007, and incorporz
(14) herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparfForm 8-K filed February 5, 2009, and incorpodaterein by
(15) reference.
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(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended Septembe2@09, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparfForm 8-K filed February 4, 2010, and incorpodaterein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended Septembe2@D), and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8-K filed October 19, 2010, and incorpaddterein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current Reparform 8-K filed November 5, 2010, and incorpaddierein
by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Annual ReporfForm 10-K dated February 18, 2011, and incorpadragerein
by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended March 31, 2ahd
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly RéparForm 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 30, 281@,
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8-K filed December 22, 2011, and incorpegdierein
by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant's Current ReparForm 8-K filed November 21, 2013, and incorpedaterein
by reference.

(b) The exhibits are set forth in subsection @xwe.

(c) The financial statement schedules are sdt forc) above.

Exhibit Index

10.1¢

10.1¢

21

23.1

31.1

31.2

32

EXHIBIT INDEX

Executive officer compensation

Non-employee director compensation

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenimn
Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
SCHEDULE I
ICU MEDICAL, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance
(Amounts in thousands) Beginning of Costs and Charged to Write-off/ at End
Description Period Expenses Other Accounts Disposals of Period
For the year ended December 31, 2011:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 74z $ 551 % — — 1,29:
For the year ended December 31, 2012:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,29 $ (237 $ 58 $ — 3 99¢
Warranty and return reserve - accounts receivable — 38¢€ — — 38¢€
Warranty and return reserve - inventory — (16€) — — (16€)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance — 56C — — 56C
For the year ended December 31, 2013:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 99¢ $ 185 % 25 3 —  $ 1,20¢
Warranty and return reserve - accounts receivable$ 38€ $ 63 $ — % (35 $ 98¢
Warranty and return reserve - inventory $ (16€6) $ 33 $ — 3 — 3 (139
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance $ 56C $ — % — % (560 $ —
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registheast duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

ICU MEDICAL, INC.

By: /sl Vivek Jain
Vivek Jain
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 21, 2014
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of Registrant and in the capacities ancherdates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Vivek Jain Chairman of the Board and February 21, 2014
Vivek Jain Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Scott E. Lamb Chief Financial Officer February 21, 2014
Scott E. Lamb (Principal Financial Officer)

/sl Kevin J. McGrody Controller February 21, 2014
Kevin J. McGrody (Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl George A. Lopez, M.D. Director February 21, 2014

George A. Lopez, M.D.

/sl Jack W. Brown Director February 21, 2014
Jack W. Brown

/s/ John J. Connors Director February 21, 2014
John J. Connors

/sl Michael T. Kovalchik, Ill, M.D. Director February 21, 2014
Michael T. Kovalchik, Ill, M.D.

/sl Joseph R. Saucedo Director February 21, 2014
Joseph R. Saucedo

/sl Richard H. Sherman, M.D. Director February 21, 2014
Richard H. Sherman, M.D.

/sl Robert S. Swinney, M.D. Director February 21, 2014
Robert S. Swinney, M.D.
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Exhibit 10.18

Executive Officer Compensation

The annual base salaries for our executive offiaatsformer executive officer as of January 1, 2&ias follows:

Annual Base
Name Title Salary
Steven C. Riggs* Acting Chief Executive Officer $ 600,00(
Scott E. Lamb Chief Financial Officer $ 395,15(
Richard A. Costello Vice President of Sales $ 356,46
Alison D. Burcar Vice President of Product Dieypenent $ 315,00(
George A. Lopez, M. D. Former Chief Executiviéicar $ 350,00(

* Mr. Riggs was Acting Chief Executive Officer fro@ctober 2013 to February 2014. In February 20@4eBumed his executive position as
Vice President of Operations at an annual baseysal&$360,582.



Exhibit 10.19
Non-Employee Director Compensation
We currently pay our non-employee directors an ahretainer of $40,000. Our lead director and e@lehirperson of a Committee of

the Board of Directors also receives an annuainetaThe compensation per meeting and annualpér@ion retainer amounts as of January 1
2014 are as follows:

Board of Special Compensation  Nominating
Directors Committee Audit Committee Committee Committee
Meeting daily compensation -
attendance in person $ 1,00C $ 50C $ 50C $ 50C $ 50C
Meeting daily compensation -
telephonic $ 50C $ 50C $ 50C $ 50C $ 50C
Annual Retainer - Chairperson $ 25,00( not applicabl $ 18,500 $ 7,50C $ 5,00(

As of January 1, 2014, the equity component offihector's compensation is valued at $150,000. bfalfie annual equity package
consists of restricted stock units and the oth#rduasists of stock options. The options becomerezable one year after the grant date and
expire ten years after the grant date. The resttistock units vest one year from the grant date.



Name

Subsidiaries of Registrant

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

ICU Medical Sales, Inc.

ICU Medical de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

ICU Medical Europe S.r.l.

ICU World, Inc.

ICE Rink, Inc.

Neo Care GmbH

ICU Medical Slovakia S.r.o.

Delaware

Mexico

Italy

Delaware

Delaware

Germany

Slovak Republic



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-04171, 333-58024,-98362, 333-90464, 333-115654, 333-
115653, 333-04167, and 333-175239 on Form S-8 ofeports dated February 21, 2014 , relating ¢éoctbnsolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule of ICU Medical, Ined subsidiaries, and the effectiveness of ICU Madinc. and subsidiaries' internal control

over financial reporting, appearing in this AnnBalport on Form 10-K of ICU Medical, Inc. and sulisiiés for the year ended December 31,
2013.

/sl Deloitte & Touche, LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 21, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Vivek Jain, certify that:

1.

2.

b)

c)

d)

a)

b)

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F ICU Medical, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@mstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1&4r the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedaorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegint's internal control over financial reportiticat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedyunanagement or other employees who have a si@niifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date:February 21, 2014 /sl Vivek Jain

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Scott E. Lamb, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKL6f ICU Medical, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoiee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentinisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyréhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

Date:February 21, 2014 /sl Scott E. Lamb
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ICU Medidalc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedded December 31, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Vivek Jain, Chiefdextive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the

Company.

February 21, 2014 /sl Vivek Jain
Vivek Jain

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ICU Medidalc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedded December 31, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Scott E. Lamb, Chigiancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20i9&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the

Company.

February 21, 2014 /sl Scott E. Lamb
Scott E. Lamb




